The Corporation of the City of Grand Forks

Regular Meeting
AGENDA
Meeting #: R-2018-12
Date: Monday, June 25, 2018, 7:00 pm
Location: 7217 - 4th Street, City Hall Council Chambers
Pages
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ANNUAL REPORT
a.  Annual Report 2017 4-55
2017 Annual Report, consideration of report and submissions and questions from the
public
Recommendation
THAT Council receives the 2017 Annual Report and considers submissions and
questions from the public.
3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
a. Adopt agenda
June 25, 2018, Regular Meeting agenda
Recommendation
THAT Council adopts the June 25, 2018, Regular Meeting agenda as presented.
4. MINUTES
a.  Adopt minutes - Regular 56 - 64
June 11, 2018, Regular Meeting minutes
Recommendation
THAT Council adopts the June 11, 2018, Regular Meeting minutes as presented.
b.  Adopt minutes - Public Hearing 65 - 71
June 18, 2018, Public Hearing Meeting minutes
Recommendation
THAT Council adopts the June 18, 2018, Public Hearing Meeting minutes as presented.
5. REGISTERED PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS
a.  Joanie Koch-Kalanj 72-118

Vienna Woods Petition and information

Corporate Services



10.

11.

Recommendation
THAT Council receives the memorandum from Corporate Services regarding the petition
Standing Strong for Vienna Woods for information.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

REPORTS, QUESTIONS AND INQUIRIES FROM MEMBERS OF COUNCIL

a.  Written Reports of Council 119-123
Corporate Officer's Report

Recommendation
THAT all written reports of Council submitted to the June 25, 2018, Regular Meeting be
received.

REPORT FROM COUNCIL'S REPRESENTATIVE TO THE REGIONAL DISTRICT OF
KOOTENAY BOUNDARY

a. Verbal Report - RDKB Representative 124 - 124
Corporate Officer's Report

Verbal report from Council's representative to the Regional District of Kootenay
Boundary

Read the RDKB agendas here: https://rdkb.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/314

Recommendation
THAT Mayor Konrad's report on the activities of the Regional District of Kootenay
Boundary, given verbally at this meeting be received.

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM STAFF FOR DECISIONS

a.  Council Liaison to the Regional Recovery Policy Group 125 -126
Chief Administrative Officer

Recommendation

THAT Council determines to appoint and as
representatives for the City of Grand Forks as participants of the Regional Recovery
Policy Group to provide an information conduit to their Council members throughout the
2018 flood disaster recovery process.

REQUESTS ARISING FROM CORRESPONDENCE

INFORMATION ITEMS

a. Flood Recovery Update 127 - 127
Deputy Manager, Flood Recovery Branch

b.  Union of BC Municipalities (UBCM) 128 - 131

Letter regarding Council 2018 resolutions endorsed at the Association of Kootenay
&Boundary Local Governments (AKBLG)
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c.  CivicInfo BC 132-133
2018 UBCM Convention - Meeting requests with the Minister of Municipal Affairs and
Housing

Recommendation

THAT Council directs staff to book appointment and implement briefing notes for
discussion on Provincial participation and funding needs to address housing
displacement needs and economic development issues due to the flood disaster in the
City of Grand Forks.

d.  Civic Info BC 134 - 135
2018 UBCM Convention - Meeting requests with Premier Horgan and Provincial Cabinet
Ministers

Recommendation

THAT Council directs staff to book appointment(s) with Premier Horgan and

and implement briefing notes for
discussion with regard to support and funding requirements addressing the ongoing
community needs due to the flood disaster in the City of Grand Forks.

e. Grand Forks and District Fall Fair 136 - 136
In-kind support and funding assistance request

Recommendation
THAT Council receives the letter of request for in-kind support and funding from the
Grand Forks and District Fall Fair Society for discussion purposes.

12. BYLAWS

a.  Third Reading of Zoning Bylaw Amendment No. 2039-A1 137 - 145
Development and Engineering Services

Recommendation
THAT Council gives third reading to Zoning Bylaw Amendment No. 2039-A1;

AND FURTHER THAT Council directs staff to forward Zoning Bylaw Amendment No.
2039-A1 to the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure for approval.

13. LATEITEMS

14. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC AND THE MEDIA

15. ADJOURNMENT
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MESSAGE FROM THE MAYOR

2017 was a big year for projects and events. We saw great team work
from community groups and staff working on large events like the Park
in the Park car show and the exciting Snowbirds Aerial Demonstration,
and projects such as the Grand Forks Disc Club and improvements to the
Grand Forks Dog Park, giving our furry friends something to wag their tails g
about. The City spent close to $3,000,000 on capital works with more than
a third of that coming from grants. A big thank you to staff that worked so
hard on those grants to save our taxpayers money! Much of that was spent
on improving our utility infrastructure with new water lines and the upgrade
to the wastewater treatment plant.

It was also impressive to see $3,700, 000 worth of issued building permits
flow in. 2017 saw an increase in permit numbers and construction values
over 2016, which was already a big increase over 2015 numbers. Grand
Forks is growing! All of this has kept our building official, Dave Bruce,
hopping. As always we welcome new development and redevelopment,
so call us about your next project.

Outside Works kept the City looking sharp and colourful, the drinking
water safe and the roads cleared. The Electrical Department planned and
implemented two major 2018 projects, the Voltage Conversion and LED Streetlights Upgrade. The first will
bring increased reliability to the electrical system downtown and the second a huge energy savings. These
guys are the reason why we don’t need to think about the water running from our taps or our toilets flushing.
They just do.

Work also proceeded on environmental planning with the Sensitive Ecosystem Inventory and the Municipal
Natural Asset Initiative. Each focussed a different lens on how we manage the City. They also assisted in the
drafting of the new Tree Policy that will help guide our urban forest management.

Last but not least, enough cannot be said about how tirelessly and selflessly members of the community
and City staff came together to help with the flooding event in May 2017. They worked long hours at the
Emergency Operations Centre, assisting our residents who were affected by the flooding. We have a great
team that worked hard to support our community during this flood, and | would personally like to thank each
and every one who helped our community through a tough time. Thank you.

Grand Forks is a community that pulls together and works as a team and the Annual Report reflects the
accomplishments of this team. On behalf of Council and City staff, | thank you for the opportunity to serve you.
We will continue to work with and for you, and we invite you to read and enjoy the City of Grand Forks Annual
Report 2017.

Sincerely,

Mayor Frank Konrad

Fiscal Accountahility ﬂ Economic Growth Community Engagement E Community Liveability
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FROM THE CAO

'- 2017 was definitely a year for projects—Grand Forks was fortunate to

¥ receive grantfunding that allowed our organization to undertake a number

. of infrastructure initiatives. This annual report shows a snapshot of those
projects, but it really doesn’t serve justice to the energy invested in our
L town. In addition, we received funding through the Strategic Priorities
Fund where the City developed a Service Sustainability Assessment
Tool along with Urban Systems and five other BC communities. Because
of the successful work from the group, the Association of Consulting
Engineering Companies BC bestowed an Award of Merit to Urban
Systems and the City of Grand Forks. We are proud to advise that this
tool is now in place for all BC local governments to utilize.

2017 was also a year that presented potential perils to our community. The
month of May saw the bulk of our management team in an Emergency
Operations Centre addressing flooding issues. We managed to avoid any
localized wildfires in which so many other communities were impacted.
Climate Change is seemingly becoming the norm as weather patterns
shift to wetter springs and hotter summers.

Our management team experienced a significant change in leadership
with the previous CAO leaving the organization early on in the year
and myself appointed as the Interim CAO. As a new CAO, | was very
fortunate to have a professional, energetic, and knowledgeable management group as well as our super
support staff and public works crews to round out our team. Our municipality is very fortunate that we are able
to attract cream of the crop talents!

In the reports that follow, you will find a summary of the work from last year and the goals for this year. You
should see a clear link between the strategic priorities and the work being performed.

| feel proud and fortunate to have the opportunity to administratively lead our organization and many thanks to
our Mayor and Council for providing that opportunity to do so.

Sincerely,

Diane Heinrich, CAO / Corporate Officer
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SUSTAINABLE SERVICE ASSESSMENT TOOL

In 2017 the City along with Urban Systems began a project to Measure the Performance of the Municipality.
The Sustainable Service Assessment Tool (SSAT) was the outcome of this project for which the City and
Urban Systems received the ACEC-BC Award of Merit. The SSAT was completed in the spring of 2018

and departmental staff, the Chief Financial Officer, and Council independently scored the Service Delivery,
Finance, and Governance sections for each of the 8 services measured. The overall results for 2017 are
below. The Annual Report for 2018 will show the trends as well.

CURRENT PREPAREDNESS
PERFORMANCE FOR THE FUTURE
;. Water 59% 56%
.
b‘ Wastewater 52% 58%
Drainage and quod 26% 31%
Protection
N
9 Parks and Recreation 51% 44%
m‘ Civic Facilities 62% 45%
9&% Transportation 39% 57%
“ Fire Protection 67% 63%
@ Solid Waste 48% 41%

OVERALL TREND

SUSTAINABILITY

fFh —
fFh —
aa
aa —
fa —
s —
Fha —
aa —
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A more in depth look into the scoring of each service for Service Delivery (completed by individual
departments), Finance (completed by the Chief Financial Officer), and Governance (completed by Council) is
shown here for 2017. The City will again report on these services through the SSAT tool in the Annual Report
for 2018.

Water

Current

Preparedness For

I i Performance The Future
3 Service_|EeIivery 61% 57%
Finance 50% 33%
_|_
Governance 67% 78%
59% | 56%
Wastowater Gt Pepasiess or
Service Delivery 39% 52%
_|_
Finance 50% 67%
_|_
Governance 67% 56%
52% | 58%

Drainage and Flood
Protection
Service Delivery

_I_

Finance

_|_

Governance

S

Current
Performance

33%

0%

44%

Preparedness For
The Future

38%

0%

56%

Fire Protection

Service Delivery

_I_

Finance

_|_

Governance

9

 26% | 31%

Current
Performance

67%

67%

67%

Preparedness For
The Future

67%

33%

89%

67%

63%

‘ Parks & Current Preparedness For
Q Recreation Performance The Future
Y Service Delivery 58% 33%
Finance 50% 33%
Governance 44% 67%
(0] (0)
951% | 44%
. e Current Preparedness For
m Civic Facilities Performance The Future
Service Delivery 57% 13%
Finance 50% 67%
Governance 78% 56%
o (0)
62% | 45%
. Current Preparedness For
@ Transportation Performance The Future
% Service Delivery 33% 38%
Finance 50% 67%
Governance 33% 67%
39% | 57%
. Current Preparedness For
Solid Waste Performance The Future
Service Delivery 33% 33%
Finance 33% 33%
Governance 78% 56%

48%

41%
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BUILDING INSPECTION AND BYLAW SERVIGES

Bylaw Services

The Bylaw Enforcement Office was very busy in 2017.
It was overwhelmed with issues stemming from the
transient population. While we are not ‘social workers’,
the resultant effects of this problem invariably fall into
a Bylaw category of one sort or another.

With new crime prevention strategies developed in
2017, such as Block Watch, it is certainly our hope
this problem will be minimized in 2018.

In addition to the transient concerns, Bylaw Services
was busy dealing with many other issues:

* 167 water use violations

* Unsightly property complaints
* Noise complaints

* Vehicle idling complaints

* Deer feeding complaints

* Property use complaints

Goals

Building Inspection

The office of Building Inspection Services is responsible
for all the building permit applications, construction and
compliance with the 2012 British Columbia Building
Code. In 2017 the City issued 91 building permits with
a construction value of $3,762,202.

* 9 Single Family Dwellings (On-site Constructed)

+ 3 Single Family Homes (Pre-manufactured)

* 4 New Residential Suites/Apartments (6
Residential Units)

* 1 New Duplex (2 Residential Units)

« 27 Residential Renovations/Additions

+ 13 Residential Accessory Buildings

* 16 Commercial Renovations/Additions

New Industrial Buildings

Industrial Renovations/Additions

New Institutional Buildings

Institutional Renovations/Additions

Demolition Permits

Permit Renewal

[ ]
RPN N N N N

+ Develop new bylaws including possible second-hand dealers and abandoned building bylaws, and

updated Building Bylaw
» Lead the Municipal Block Watch Initiative
+ Continue Facility Management Support

* Proactively educate Building Code and bylaw concerns

+ Consistent, uniform bylaw enforcement

- Work closely with provincial partners to End Transient Trespassing on Crown Lafigenda Page 13 of 14510
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CORPORATE SERVIGES

Chief Administrative Officer / Corporate Officer — Diane Heinrich

Deputy Corporate Officer — Daniel Drexler
Corporate Administrative Assistant — Daphne Popoff

Corporate Services prepares the agendas and takes the minutes for Council Meetings and for Committees of
Council. This department is also responsible for record keeping for responding to complaints and information
requests such as Freedom of Information and Ombudsperson requests. Corporate Services’ responsibilities
are mainly derived from the statutory requirements as outlined in the Community Charter. The Deputy Corporate
Officer also oversees Information Technology services for the organization.

The Community Services Department was established in 2013 and is overseen by the Deputy Corporate
Officer. The department focuses on agreements with local non-profit organizations and acts as a liaison for
events. In 2018 the events coordination will be transitioned to Public Works.

Highlights

* Meeting Management Software changes
* Email System and Records Management file structure changes
* Events Coordination

Goals for 2018

» Continuation of the next level of Records Management- multi -year project (Digitization of relevant bylaws
for public and staff access, retention schedule, searchable)

» Transition to Public Works for Events Coordination

» Assistance in Policy and Bylaw review and updates

» Continued relationship development with the provincial and federal governments.

* Marketing and advertising, social media management and programming.

* Information Technology cost sharing agreements with community partners

+ Standardization of Fee for Service contracts and other agreements

Agenda Page 15 of 14512






DEVELOPMENT & ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

The Development and Engineering department’s primary planning and technical functions are to provide
engineering services support to facilities, parks, roads, water, sewer and electrical projects which encompass
the Municipality’s asset renewal, repair or replacement program both operational and capital. The department
also provides development services support for subdivisions and development ensuring compliance with
zoning, land use and the visions and guiding principles of the sustainable community plan. The department is
committed to providing quality service that enhances and advances quality of life through long term planning for
the community, encouraging strategic economic development, promoting tourism and downtown revitalization
incentives.

Highlights

+ Managed capital projects and continued to apply for grants to secure funding for infrastructure repair,
replacement and renewal

* Asset Management Implementation—long term strategies and policies

Completed Sensitive Ecosystem Inventory and Municipal Natural Assets Initiative studies

Continued asset management/GIS software integration

* Implemented WildSafeBC program

Continued Sustainable Community Plan/Zoning Bylaw review and update

Climate Action Revenue Incentive Program Reporting

Finished 5th Street/Priede Bridge water main project: contracting, inspections and review

Continued Research and Planning for Zoning Bylaw, Tax Incentive and Heritage Guidelines

* Business Licensing and Bylaw Administration
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Goals for 2018

Asset management — long term implementation strategy and policies

Tax incentive bylaw investigation for downtown businesses

Business licencing and bylaw administration

OCP, Zoning and DCC bylaw revisions and implementation

Long term planning and design criteria policies for development

Facilitating pending development and construction activity

Implementation/co-ordination of strategic local and regional projects

Continue to promote the City through showcasing development land and “open for business” initiative
Continue to build GIS mapping and asset inventory to streamline day-to-day operations and identify
priority projects through risk management analysis

Manage capital projects and apply for and administer grants and contracts for infrastructure repair,
replacement and renewal

Continue to support local user groups’ initiatives and projects

Municipal natural assets/floodplain/climate change initiatives

Cannafest



FINANCE DEPARTMENT

The Finance Department has six staff members that include the Chief Financial Officer, an Accountant/
Comptroller, a Payments Clerk, a Revenue Clerk, an Accounting Clerk, and an Administrative Assistant.

I I I metered rate structure
Flnan(:|al SerVICES * Continued with implementation of Worktech Asset

Legislative and Internal Financial Reporting Management Software
Financial Plan and Budget Preparation + Ongoing financial process and reporting
Financial Policy and Bylaw Development efficiencies
Revenue Billing and Collection
Property Tax Administration Gﬂals for 20] 8
Cemetery Administration + Develop Utility Billing Bylaw
Business Licence Administration . Revise Utility Regulations Bylaws
Accounts Payable « Implement mock billing for residential water
Payroll accounts
Reception Services * Analyse water use with respect to sewer rate

2017 Activities setting

* Revise Tangible Capital Asset and Purchasing

Drafted Permissive Tax Exemption policy Policies
and revisions to Tangible Capital Asset and + Complete new Permissive Tax Exemption Policy
Purchasing policies » Implement procurement activity reporting

Completed water rates review to establish new

Operating expenditures

$1,138,176 in general government services

$930,464 in protective services - fire rescue, victim services , building inspection and bylaw enforcement
$1,033,216 in transportation services — roads and fleet

$829,352 in recreation and culture — parks maintenance and contributions to Gallery 2, Boundary
Museum, Chamber of Commerce and Boundary District Arts Council

$257,406 in public real estate and facilities

$218,292 in environmental health services — solid waste management

$79,663 in public health services — cemetery

$388,270 in planning and development services

$5,523,166 operating expenditures for the electrical, water and sewer utilities

Agenda Page 19 of 14516






Financial Highlights

Annual surplus for 2017 was $2,455,262

Accumulated surplus increased from $33,998,720 in 2016 to $36,453,982 at the end of 2017

Accumulated Surplus

40,000
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5,000
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B Operating Fund Surplus  OStatutory Reserves B Investment in Capital Assets

2017
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Net financial assets increased from $6,313,698 in 2016 to $7,637,726 at the end of 2017
Reserve funds increased from $4,463,951 at the end of 2016 to $6,141,950 at the end of 2017
Cash increased by $1,425,434 to $11,232,934 over the year.

Cash and Investments
12,000
10,000
¥y
B 8,000
3
=5
2 6,000
'—
L
4,000
2,000
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
ECash @lnvestments

Of the total $2,982,952 capital expenditures for 2017, $188,534 was funded by debt, $1,361,820 through
grants, and $1,423,793 from reserves.
Debt, including interim borrowing, was reduced by $153,833, from $3,685,160 to $3,531,327.

Debt
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EMERGENCY SERVICES / FIRE DEPARTMENT

The Emergency Services department provides fire and emergency protective services to the City of Grand
Forks, and the Regional District of Kootenay Boundary (Area “D”) under contract.

The Chief and Assistant Chief supervise a group of over 50 volunteers who provide firefighting, medical and
hazardous material response, and road, high-angle rope, confined space, and swift water rescue services.

2017 Highlights

+ Responded to 480 calls — 179 fire-related, 69 rescue, and 239 First Responder (medical).

« Over 10,500 total volunteer hours.

» Organized and hosted BC Volunteer Firefighters Spring Training Weekend.

* Provided fire protection and safety for Snowbirds air show.

+ Continued public consultation and plans for consolidating down to two fire halls in the lower Grand Forks
valley.

* Completed phase two of Fire Training Ground.

* Reviewed and discussed renewal of fire services contract with RDKB, as in line with council’s strategic
plan on encouraging regional relationships.

+ Completed Asset Management data collection and will implement after consolidation of RDKB fire halls.

» Continued volunteer firefighter recruitment/retention efforts (8 new volunteers).

+ Completed AAP process of consolidating fire halls and replacing RDKB fire truck.

+ Completed NFPA 1001 certification for first and second group of firefighters.




Goals for 2018

* Implement Asset Management data into Asset Management Plan.
+ Begin liquidation process for reducing by two fire halls.
» Oversee addition to Carson Fire Hall.
* Initiate RFP process and order new RDKB fire truck.
» Fire Officer certification for fire department officers.
* Fire Service Instructor training.
* Live Fire Instructor training.
* Migrate dispatch services from Trail Regional Fire Service to Kelowna Fire Department.
» Hire Deputy Chief of Training, Operations, and Administration.
IS
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OUTSIDE WORKS

The City of Grand Forks Outside Works Department employs 17 unionized employees and two management
personnel. Committed to deliver superior and economically feasible levels of service to the residents of Grand
Forks, the Public Works crew manages and maintains:

The Grand Forks Airport,

50 km of roads,

20 km of sidewalks,

43 km of water mains,

36 km of sanitary sewer mains,

11 km of storm sewer mains,

9 public parks,

3 km of trails,

22 publicly owned buildings, and

75 pieces of various equipment including the Fire Department fleet.

The City of Grand Forks is one of five municipalities in the province that operates its own electrical utility
committed to delivering fair and equitable rates to the residents of Grand Forks.




2017 Highlights

Reduced maintenance costs of the flower program.

Drafted tree policy to maintain the urban forest.
Reorganized community event support.

Reviewed campground model and advertising strategy.

Ensured compliance with MIA.
Hired new Powerline Technicians.
Reviewed BC One Call procedures.

Ensured regulatory compliance with operating permits.
Reviewed electrical service delivery model and planned further work for 2018.

Managed Occupational Health and Safety Program.

Negotiating pole use agreement.

Educated about water conservation and participate in the water purveyors group meetings.

Replaced equipment to gain efficiency.
Implemented inspection chamber program.

2018 Goals

All departments Waste Water

* Maintain or improve service levels + Asset Management (Worktech implementation,

* Asset Management (Worktech implementation, data acquisition of existing sewer infrastructure)
data acquisition, street light design) * Replace aging equipment and standardize pumps

Public Works to gain efficiency

Increase accessibility of community trails for
maintenance vehicles

Increase the service efficiency to boulevards
Draft urban forest plan

Increase the protection of parks infrastructure
Implement community event support

Market and improve campground

Upgrade Dick Bartlett Park

Ensure compliance with MIA

Review facilities and airport management
Reduce carbon footprint

Improve irrigation and turf management practices
Promote airport development

Water *

Review and update fees and charges

Review BC One Call procedure

Increased training

Audit the well production against the metered
quantity

Educate about water conservation and participate
in the water purveyors group meetings

Improve water supply to airport

Continue inspection chamber program

Continue repairing system in areas with frequent
issues

Legislated safety training and additional
certification training

Commission waste water treatment plant upgrades

Electrical

Audit Electrical service delivery model (currently
distribution model)

Audit the Electrical department

Manage Occupational Health and Safety program
Analyze rates

Negotiate pole use agreement

Review BC One Call procedure

BCMEU Safety training

Return crew to full complement
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CAPITAL |

2016 Carry Forward Projects

CAPITAL PROJECT

Silver Kettle Sidewalk

Public Works Fuel Tanks

Whispers of Hope Roof

5 tonne Dump Truck

T-Tech trailer

| GIS Phase 2

Riverside Reconductor

Electrical Substation Engineering

Wastewater Treatment Plant UV

Headworks Grinder

Water/Sewer Scada

3rd Street Sewer Main Repair

West Side Fire Protection

Water/Sewer Scada

Residential Water Meter Project

| Well #3 Pump and Motor

i

5th Street Watermain Replacement




ROJECTS

2017 New Capital Projects

CAPITAL PROJECT

Public Works Upgrades

JD Park Stadium Padding
Service Truck Replacement

PW Photocopier

Expo Sign changes

Library HRV

Public Works - 22nd Street
Wayfaring Signs

« | LED Lighting

* 4 Emergency Repair Fund

Flood Plain Mapping & Dike Restoration
Holder Replacement

Airport AWOS Ugrade

Electrical System Upgrades
Substation Engineering

“| Electrical Voltage Conversion
Lift Station Equipment
Bio-Solids Land Application Plan
Sewer Main Relining
Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrades
Sewer Phasing Plan

Water Supply & Conservation

Total all capital projects

';_I_ _.'.‘-, . _-..'_--_"rj_' 5 : e peaEr



PROPERTY TA)

In accordance with Division 7 of Part 7 of the Community Charter,

permissive property tax exemptions by Council in 2017.

Athletic, Charitable or Philanthropic Organizations

Value of
Permissive

Legal Description Civic Address |Organization Exemption

Lot 1, DL. 380, S.D.Y.D. Plan KAP54909 7230 21st St Grand Forks Curling Rink $11,098

Lot 5, Block 10, DL 108, S.D.Y.D., Plan 23 366 Market Ave Grand Forks Masonic $499
Building

Lot A, DL 108, S.D.Y.D. Plan 38294 978 72nd Ave Sunshine  Valley Little $1,968
Peoples Centre

Lot 8, Block 25, Plan 23, DL 108 S.D.Y.D. 686 72nd Ave Slavonic Senior Citizens $634
Centre

Lot A, DL 108 S.D.Y.D. Plan 6691 7239 2nd St Grand Forks Auxiliary to the $2,553
Boundary Hospital Society

Lots 23, 24, 25, 26 Block 29, DL 108 S.D.Y.D. | 7353 6th St Royal Canadian Legion $3,506

Plan 121 Branch 59

Lots 10 and 17 — 20, Block 18, DL 108, |565 71st Ave Grand Forks Senior Citizens $3,948

S.D.Y.D. Plan 86 Centre

Parcel B, Block 45, D.L. 108, Plan 72 876 72nd Ave Phoenix Manor Society $3,182

Lot A, Plan 29781, DL 108, Land District 54 7130 9th St Grand Forks and District $3,099
Housing Society

Lot 1, DL 108, Plan EPP 32379 7212 Riverside Dr Whispers of Hope $4,130
Benevolence Association
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[ EXEMPTIONS

the following properties in the City of Grand Forks were provided

Hospital and Public Worship Organizations

Value of
Permissive
Legal Description Civic Address |0Organization Exemption
Parcel D, Block 24, DL 108, S.D.Y.D.|7252 7th St Synod of the Diocese of $280
Plan 23 Kootenay
Lot 1, DL 108, S.D.Y.D., Plan KAP45199 | 7525 4th St Grand Forks Christian $42
Centre
Lots 1 and 2, Block 36, DL 108, S.D.Y.D., [ 920 Central Ave Trustees of the $184
Plan 72 Congregation of United
Church of Canada
Lots 30, 31, 32, Block 36, DL 108,|7249 9th St Roman Catholic Bishop $225
S.D.YD., Plan 72 of Nelson
Parcel A, Block 16, DL 380, S.D.Y.D.,|7328 19th St Christ Lutheran Church of $105
Plan 35 Grand Forks
Lot G, DL 380, S.D.Y.D., Plan KAP56079 | 7048 Donaldson Dr |BC Conference of $125
Mennonite Brethren
Lot 2, DL 520, S.D.Y.D., Plan KAP53800 | 7680 Donaldson Dr |Jehovah’s Witnesses $118
Lot 1, DL 520, S.D.Y.D., Plan 8653 except | 2826 75th Ave Pentecostal Church $89
Plan H-17064
Lot 1, Plan KAP27903, DL 585, S.D.Y.D. [ 7850 2nd St Grand Forks Baptist $666
Church

Declaration of disqualified council members

There were no disqualified Council members in 2017.
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APPENDIX A: 2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Statements of

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS

Management Report

Management is responsible for the preparation of the accompanying financial statements. The financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles disclosed in note 2 to the financial
statements, and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are management'’s responsibility. Management
is also responsible for all the notes to the financial statements and schedules, and for ensuring that this
information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained in the financial statements.

Management has established and maintained a system of internal accounting controls which are designed to
provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorized and recorded properly,

and reliable financial information is produced.

The independent external auditors, KH Burch Kientz Inc., have conducted an independent examination in
accordance with Canadian auditing standards and expressed their opinion in the accompanying report.

Juliettgﬁﬁodes

Chief Financial Officer
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KH BURCH KIENTZ INC.

Chartered Professional Accountants

J.R. (Jim) Burch, FCPA, FCGA
Sylvia Burch, CPA, CGA T: 250.442.2121
K. Sarah Kientz, BBA(App), CPA, CGA www.kempharvey.com

STRENGTH IN NUMBERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Mayor and Council of The Corporation of the City of Grand Forks

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Corporation of the City of Grand Forks, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017 and the statements of operations and
accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The
Corporation of the City of Grand Forks as at December 31, 2017 and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Grand Forks, British Columbia KH Burch Ké&’\tgl‘n&
May 7, 2018 CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS

A Proud Member of the Kemp Harvey Group
Burnaby « Coquitlam « Grand Forks « Kelowna » Osoyoaos = Penticton « Terrace » Vernon
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31 2017 2016
Financial Assets
Cash (note 3) $ 11,232,934 $ 9,807,500
Accounts receivable (note 5) 2,581,974 2,299,569
Municipal Finance Authority deposit (note 6) 31,269 30,671
Inventories for resale 16,127 40,435
Land held for resale 211,036 211,036
Lease receivable (note 7) 92,858 114,532
14,166,198 12,503,743
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 8) 1,682,291 1,317,638
Employee future benefits (note 9) 320,381 338,504
Deferred revenues (note 10) 468,036 333,344
Temporary loan (note 11) 1,372,794 1,246,589
Development cost charges (note 12) 526,437 515,399
Long-term debt (note 13) 2,158,533 2,438,571
6,528,472 6,190,045
Net financial assets 7,637,726 6,313,698
Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses 193,428 228,789
Inventory of parts and supplies 112,164 149,866
Tangible capital assets (note 14) 28,510,664 27,306,367
28,816,256 27,685,022
Accumulated surplus (note 15) $ 36,453,982 $ 33,998,720

W

Juliette Rhodes, CPA, CGA Fra’K Konrad
Chief Financial Officer Mayor, City of Grand Forks

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

2017 2017 2016
For the year ended December 31 Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
Property taxation (note 16) $ 3,977,813 3,974,380 3,772,935
Sales of senices (note 17) 7,264,188 7,524,444 6,920,108
Other revenues (note 18) 636,168 782,919 736,055
Gowernment transfers (note 19) 4,845,997 2,123,322 946,450
Contributions from others 55,413 159,700 17,190
Interest income 101,500 149,373 101,376
Investment income on sinking fund - 29,978 32,060
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets - 7,200 239,726
16,881,079 14,751,316 12,765,900

Expenses
General government 1,182,590 1,138,176 1,201,042
Protective services 928,111 930,464 789,860
Emronmental health senices 200,800 218,292 a2
Public health and welfare 94,202 79,663 60,501
Planning and development 564,333 388,270 392,577
Transportation senices 1,196,464 1,033,216 960,103
Recreation and cultural scrvices 1,038,968 829,352 875,316
Public real estate 255,832 257,406 229,447
Electrical senices 4,162,066 4,085,016 3,880,431
Water senices 814,413 720,476 811,180
Wastewater senices 720,547 717,674 644,533
Debt interest 120,786 122,894 120,510
Amortization 1,859,889 1,775,155 1,640,444
13,158,501 12,296,054 11,775,973
Annual Surplus 3,722,578 2,455,262 989,927
Accumulated surpius, beginning of year 33,998,720 33,998,720 33,008,793
Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 37,721,298 $ 36,453,982 $ 33,998,720

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets

2017 2017 2016
For the year ended December 31 Budget Actual Actual
Annual Surplus $ 3,722,578 $ 2,455,262 $ 989,927
Acaquisition of tangible capital assets (8,702,250) (2,982,952) (1,329,363)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,859,889 1,775,155 1,640,444
Gain on sale of assets - (7,200) (239,726)
Proceeds from sale of assets - 10,700 243,408
Net change in prepaid expenses and supplies inventory - 73,063 (33,577)
Increase in Net Financial Assets (3,119,783) 1,324,028 1,271,113
Net Financial Assets, beginning of year 6,313,698 6,313,698 5,042,585
Net Financial Assets, end of year $ 3,193,915 $ 7,637,726 $ 6,313,698

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS

Statement of Cash Flow

For the year ended December 31 2017 2016
Operating transactions
Annual surplus 2,455,262 989,927
Adjustment for non-cash items
Amortization 1,775,155 1,640,444
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (7,200) (239,726)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 35,362 (64,134)
Decrease in supplies inventory 37,701 30,556
(Increase) decrease in assets
Accounts receivable (282,404) 246,282
Lease receivable 21,674 20,711
MFA deposits (598) (834)
Inventories for resale 24,309 (209,701)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 364,652 (153,765)
Deferred revenue 134,692 (443)
Employee future benefits (18,123) (54,507)
Deferred dewvelopment cost charges 11,037 5,253
4,551,519 2,210,063
Capital transactions
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (2,982,952) (1,329,363)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 10,700 243,408
(2,972,252) (1,085,955)
Financing transactions
Proceeds from borrowing 188,534 722,518
Repayment of short-term debt (62,329) -
Repayment of long-term debt (251,630) (230,101)
Actuarial adjustments on long term debt (28,408) (22,995)
(153,833) 469,422
Net increase in cash 1,425,434 1,593,530
Cash, beginning of year 9,807,500 8,213,970
Cash, end of year 11,232,934 9,807,500

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

-7-
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements. They explain the significant
accounting and reporting policies and the principles that form the basis of these financial statements, as
well as providing supplementary information and explanations which cannot be conveniently integrated into

the statements.

1. Nature of Entity

The City was incorporated in 1897 under the Municipal Act (now a combination of the Community
Charter and the Local Government Act), a statute of the Province of British Columbia. Its principal
activities include the provision of local government services to the residents of the incorporated area.
These services include protective, community planning, transportation, recreational, solid waste
collection, water, wastewater and electrical services.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements are the responsibility of and are prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards and prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Board
("PSAB") of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

The City's operations and resources are segregated into various funds for accounting and financial
reporting purposes, with each fund treated as a separate entity with responsibility for the assets
allocated to it. Inter-fund transactions and balances have been eliminated in the preparation of these

financial statements.

The City’s funds are classified as follows:

i) Operating Funds
These funds include the general, electrical, water, and wastewater operations of the City, and are
used to record the operating costs associated with providing those services.

i) Capital Funds

The capital funds record the acquisition costs of various capital assets and financing related to
these assets. They include the general, electrical, water, and wastewater capital funds.

iii) Reserve Funds
Under the Community Charter, City Council may, by bylaw, establish reserve funds for specific
purposes. Money in a reserve fund and the interest earned thereon must be used only for the
purpose for which the fund was established. If the amount in a reserve fund exceeds the amount
required, City Council may, by bylaw, transfer all or part of the balance to another reserve.

iv) Trust Funds
These funds hold cash assets that must be used for specific purposes and/or beneficiaries
according to agreements or legislated requirements. The City administers trust funds for its
Employee Assistance Program, Slag Remediation, and Cemetery Care Fund. In accordance with
public sector accounting standards, trust funds administered by the City are not included in the
City’s financial statements, other than as disclosed in Note 21.

Budget Figures

The budget figures are from the 5-Year Financial Plan Bylaw, No. 2036 which was adopted on April 10,
2017. Subsequent budget amendments adopted by Council have not been included in these financial

statements.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Revenue Recognition

Taxation revenues are recorded upon issuance of the annual property tax notices in May. Revenues
from the sale of services and user fees are recognized when Lhe service or product is provided by the
City. Franchise and other revenues are recorded as they are earned and measurable. Amounts that
have been received in advance of services being rendered are recorded as deferred revenue until the
City fulfills its obligations related to the provision of those services.

Transfers from other governments are recognized as revenue in the period that the transfer is
authorized, eligibility criteria have been met, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. If
transfer agreements contain stipulations that would give rise to obligations which meet the definition of
a liability, revenue is deferred and recognized as the stipulations are met.

Investment income is recorded on the accrual basis and recognized when earned.

Deferred Revenue

Funds received for specific purposes which are externally restricted by legislation, regulation or
agreement and are not available for general municipal purposes are accounted for as deferred revenue.
The associated revenue is recognized in the year in which it is used for the specified purpose.

Xpenses
Expenses are generally recognized as they are incurred based upon receipt of the goods and services
and/or a legal obligation to pay is established.

Financial Instruments

The City's financial instruments consist of cash, deposits, accounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities, and short and long-term debt.

Inventories for Resale

Inventories for resale consist of aviation fuel which is held at the lower of historical and replacement
cost, using a weighted average basis.

Land Held For Resale

Land held for resale is recorded at cost, including transaction fees directly attributable to the acquisition
and improvements to prepare the land for sale. Donated land for resale has been recorded at a nominal
value where its historical value is unknown.

Lease Receivable

Leases receivable are initially recorded at cost. Valuation allowances are made when collection is
in doubt. Interest revenue in relation to the lease is recorded at the time it is received..

Liability for Contaminated Sites

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, water or sediment of a
chemical, organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds the maximum acceptable
concentrations under an environmental standard. A liability for remediation of contaminated sites is
recognized when all of the following criteria are met:

i. an environmental standard exists;

i contamination exceeds the environmental standard;

if. the City is directlyresponsible or accepts responsibility, and a reasonable estimate of the
amount can be made.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

The liability includes costs directly attributable to remediation activities including post remediation
operations, maintenance and monitoring.

Inventory of Parts and Supplies

Inventories held for consumption include materials and repair parts held for use by the electrical utility,
fuel for consumption and other items used in operations, and are valued at the lower of cost or net
realizable value.

Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes all amounts that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset, but excluding interest. The cost
of tangible capital assets is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset

as follows:
General Capital Fund Estimated Useful Life
Land Not amortized
Land Improvements 20 - 50 years
Buildings 40 - 50 years
Engineering Structures 10 - 50 years
Machinery & Equipment 3 - 25 years
Vehicles 8 - 40 years

Electrical System Capital Fund
Electrical infrastructure 5 - 40 years

Water System Capital Fund
Water infrastructure 10 - 50 years

Wastewater System Capital Fund
Wastewater infrastructure 10 - 50 years

Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt.

Work in progress, which represents capital projects under construction but not yet completed, is not
amortized until construction is complete and the asset is available for productive use.

Long-Term Debt
Outstanding long-term debt is reported net of applicable sinking fund balances.

Debt Charges

Interest on debt is charged to current operations. Interest charges are accrued for the period from the
date of the latest interest payment to the end of the year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the financial reporting period. Significant areas requiring the use of estimates include
the determination of accrued payroll liabilities and employee future benefits, tangible capital asset useful
lives and amortization expense, and provisions for contingencies. Actual results could differ from
management's best estimates as additional information becomes available in the future.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

3. Cash

Cash is comprised of unrestricted cash for operations and restricted cash for reserve funds and deferred
development cost charges which are held in segregated accounts.

2017 2016

Restricted cash
Statutory Reserves $ 6,637,989 $5,449,614
Restricted Revenues (see Note 12) 526,437 515,399
7,164,426 5,965,013
Unrestricted cash 4,068,508 3,842 487
Total cash $ 11,232,934 $ 9,807,500

Operating Line of Credit

The City has an operating line of credit with Grand Forks Credit Union for an authorized amount
of $2,000,000, bearing interest at the base lending rate less 0.5%. At December 31, 2017, the
balance outstanding on the operating line of credit was nil (2016 - nil).

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded net of allowances and comprise the following:

2017 2016

Property taxes $ 844,956 $ 770,397
Utility accounts receivable 1,373,347 1,342,982
Due from other governments 308,356 36,344
Trade and other receivables 55,315 149,846
$ 2,581,974 $ 2,299,569

Municipal Finance Authority Debt Reserve Fund

The Municipal Finance Authority provides capital funding for regional districts and their member
municipalities through the issuance of debenture debt. The Debt Reserve Fund established by the
Municipal Finance Authority is security held in trust to meet its obligations to debenture holders.

Municipalities sharing in the proceeds of a debt issue are required to contribute certain amounts to the
debt reserve fund in the form of cash withheld from the loan proceeds and a non-interest bearing
demand note. Monies paid into the Debt Reserve Fund are obligations of the Municipal Finance
Authority and are refunded, with interest, upon maturity of the debt.

Only the cash portion of MFA deposits is included as a financial asset. The demand notes are contingent
in nature and not reflected in the financial statements.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

The details of the cash deposits and demand notes at year end are as follows:

Demand Cash
Notes Deposits 2017 2016
General Fund $ 28,501 $ 7299 $ 35,800 $ 35,660
Wastewater Fund 52,184 23,970 76,154 75,697
$ 80,685 $ 31,269 $ 111,954 $ 111,357

7. Lease Receivable

The City has entered into a long-term capital lease agreement with the Regional District of Kootenay
Boundary for the lease of a building and lands. The term of the agreement is 12 years commencing
August 1, 2010, with annual payments of $27,000 including interest at 4.65%. Interest of $5,326 (2016
- $6,289) was received during the year.

8. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities comprise the following:

2017 2016

Wages and benefits $ 441,220 $ 465,942
Trade payables 1,059,342 762,655
Other taxing authorities 169,149 74,891
Accrued interest 12,580 14.150
$ 1,682,291 $1,317,638

9. Employee Future Benefits

The City provides sick leave and certain other benefits to its unionized employees upon retirement.
The liabilities and expenses for post-employment sick leave benefits are recognized in the financial
statements in the period in which they are earned, and as at the end of 2017 are fully accrued to the
level of the employees’ current accumulated entitlement. These amounts will require funding in future
accounting periods as cash payments are made to employees retiring from service.

Expenses for management sick time are not accrued, but recognized at the time they are paid.

10. Deferred Revenues

The City records deferred revenue for funds received in advance of services being rendered. These
amounts are shown as liabilities until the services are rendered or related costs are incurred.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Deferred Revenues

Balance,

Reginning of  Contributions Revenue Balance,
Year Received Eamed End of Year
Prepaid taxes 257,890 276,213 (257,890) 276,213
Prepaid utilities 36,697 45,427 (36,697) 45,427
Library maintenance contract 27,735 13,000 (8,177 31,558

Victim assistance - 16,657 (16,657) -
Grants - 2,116,213 (2,080,485) 35,728
Deposits and other 11,022 69,060 (972) 79,110
333,344 2,536,570 (2,401,878) 468,036

11. Temporary Loan

12.

In 2012, the City completed the approval process for two long-term loans of up to $1,300,000 and
$4,200,000 with the Municipal Finance Authority for the capital funding of emergency water supply for

fira flow protection and renewal of road, water, and wastewater infrastructure

The City passed temporary borrowing bylaws for these loans, authorizing interim financing with the
Municipal Financing Authority up to the total amount of the loans. These interim loans are demand,
non-revolving loans, bearing daily interest at a floating rate which is currently at approximately 1.9% per
annum. As security, the City has issued promissory notes which require the repayment of principal by
September 30, 2019, should the interim loans not be converted to long-term debt prior to that date.

Balance,
Authorized Beginning of Principal Additional Balance Interest Payments
Amount Year Repayment Drawdown End of Year 2017 2016
Bylaw 1950 $ 1,300,000 370,719 (18,536) - 352,183 5,726 5,146
Bylaw 1998 $ 4,200,000 875,870 (43,793) 188,534 1,020,611 13,627 12,160
$ 5,500,000 1,246,589 (62,329) 188,534 1,372,794 19,353 17,306

Deferred Development Cost Charges (DCCs)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Local Government Act, development cost charges are held in
separate reserve funds for the purpose for which the charges have been imposed. When the
related costs are incurred, the DCCs are recognized as revenue. Due to the restrictive nature of
these funds, they are shown as liabilities.

2017 2016
Balance, beginning of year $ 515,399 $ 510,146
Contributions from developers 4,812 -
Interest on investments 6,226 5,253
Balance, end of year $ 526,437 $ 515,399

13-
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

13.

The balance of deferred development cost charges comprises the following:

Water development cost charges
Wastewater development cost charges
Parkland development cost charges

Long-Term Debt

2017 2016

$ 187,277 $ 182,628
336,693 330,333
2,467 2,438

$ 526,437 $515,399

The City has financed certain capital expenditures by means of long-term debenture debt obtained
from the Municipal Finance Authority (MFA) through the Regional District of Kootenay Boundary.
These loans range in term from ten to twenty years, with maturity dates from 2019 to 2033. The terms
of the loan agreement require the City to provide security in the form of demand notes payable to the
MFA and to deposit cash representing 1% of the gross proceeds into a debt reserve fund (see note 6).

The City has also funded the purchase of assets through the MFA’s equipment financing program,
which takes the place of the former MFA leasing program. This debt consists of a five-year loan
payable in monthly installments at a variable interest rate based on the monthly Canadian Dealer
Offered Rate. The City has signed a promissory note payable to the MFA as security for this loan.

General capital fund
Roads
Bylaw 1863; MFA Issue #106

Roads - NW 79th
Bylaw 1887; MFA Issue #112

Sewer capital Fund
Ruckle Lift Station
Bylaw 1498; MFA Issue #70

City Park Lift Station
Bylaw 1873; MFA Issue #126

Long term loan financing
Equipment financing

2015 Cobra Ladder Truck
MFA Loan#0001-0

Total Long Term Debt

Current Balance,
Interest Beginning of Payments of Actuarial Balance,
Rate  Term Maturity Year Principal  Adjustment End of Year
413% 10yrs 2019 $ 171,072 $§ 41646 13,157 $ 116,269
3.73% 15yrs 2025 46,812 3,496 927 42,389
2.30% 20yrs 2019 42211 6,495 6,957 28,759
3.85% 20yrs 2033 1,572,744 59,000 7,367 1,506,377
$ 1832839 $ 110,637 28,408 $ 1,693,794
194% 5yrs 2021 § 605,732 $ 140,993 - 464,739
$ 2438571 $§ 251630 28408 $ 2,158,533

-14-
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

The estimated requirements for future repayments of principal on existing debt for the next five years
are as follows:

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
General Fund $ 45141 $ 45141 $ 3,496 $ 3,496 $ 3,496
Sewer Fund 65,495 65,495 59,000 59,000 59,000
Equipment Financing 141,068 144,030 147,118 32,523 -

$ 251,704 $ 254,666 $ 209,614 $ 95,019 $ 62,496

14. Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets consist of the following:

Net Net
Book Value Book Value
2017 2016
General Capital Fund
Land $ 1,672,841 $ 1,672,841
Land improvements 398,234 418,423
Buildings 2,908,463 3,055,348
Machinery and equipment 766,416 949,867
Engineering structures 8,221,448 8,828,623
Storm structures 15,172 16,065
Protective senvices vehicles 1,221,730 1,306,343
Public works vehicles 792,399 917,820
Assets under construction 552,886 13,506
16,549,589 17,178,836
Water Utility
Plant and equipment 4,152,066 3,976,967
Assets under construction 733,418 819,807
4,885,484 4,796,774
Electrical Utility
Plant and equipment 996,179 830,950
Assets under construction 651,375 323,731
1,647,554 1,154,681
Wastewater Utility
Plant and equipment 3,903,849 4,069,060
Assets under construction 1,524,188 107,016
5,428,037 4,176,076
Total Tangible Capital Assets $ 28,510,664 $ 27,306,367
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

15. Accumulated surplus comprises the following:

2017 2016
Operating Fund $ 5,296,365 $ 5,902,648
Statutory Reserves
Capital 4,221,839 2,507,400
Community works gas tax 606,204 396,407
Slag sales 529,716 594,737
Equipment replacement 326,439 482,242
Land sales 250,698 262,894
Water capital 97,645 98,000
Electrical capital 50,011 56,622
Climate action 38,959 31,505
Wastewater capital 16,248 30,000
Cash in lieu of parking 4,191 4,144
$ 6,141,950 $ 4,463,951
Non-Statutory Reserves
Election reserve 25,000 5,000
Fire department - EOC reserve 11,330 5,913
$ 36,330 $ 10,913
Investment in Non-Financial Assets
investment in capital assets 24,979,337 23,621,208

$ 36,453,982 $ 33,998,720

16. Property Tax Revenues

Municipal taxation revenues comprise the following:

2017 2016

Property taxes $ 3,693,713 $ 3,411,083
Parcel and frontage taxes 161,484 240,762
1% utilities tax 102,534 106,223
Grants and payments in lieu of taxes 16,649 14,867
$ 3,974,380 $ 3,772,935
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

17.

18.

18.

Sale of Services

Electrical utility user fees
Water utility user fees
Wastewater utility user fees
Slag sales

Solid waste collection
Campground fees

Cemetery

Airport (net of cost of fuel sold)
Sundry and other

Other Revenues

Fire district recoveries

Provincial fire and emergency recoveries
Penalties and interest

Leases and rentals

Donations and grants

Licences and permits

Franchise fees

Other recoveries

Other revenues

Government Transfers

In 2017 the City received and recorded the following transfers from other governments:

Operating transfers
Federal
Provincial

Capital transfers

Federal
Provincial

Total government transfers

-17-

2017 2016

$ 5,141,344 $4,619,292
910,387 892,888
887,342 870,526
215,208 208,964
233,845 206,550
59,107 60,491
36,196 20,314
28,778 31,611
12,237 9,572

$ 7,524,444 $ 6,920,108
2017 2016

$ 226,179 $ 226,650
127,759 -
111,765 102,935
105,919 120,834
58,464 70,300
58,488 53,287
54,049 60,963
29,847 70,400
10,449 30,686

$ 782,919 $ 736,055
2017 2016

$ 100,000 $ 97475
579,856 540,667

$ 679,856 $ 638,142
$ 222,942 $ 253,210
1,220,524 55,098

$ 1,443,466 $ 308,308
$ 2,123,322 $ 946,450
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

20. Reconciliation to Budget

The following reconciles the balanced statutory budget adopted by Council on April 10, 2017 with the
budgeted surplus reported on the statement of operations and accumulated surplus:

Budget surplus as per the statement of operations

and accumulated surplus $ 3,722,578
Add: Budgeted amortization expense 1,859,889
Budgeted transfer from reserves 2,005,788
Debt proceeds 1,428,784
Subtract:  Debt principal repayments (314,789)
Tangible capital asset expenditures (8,702,250)
Surplus as per Financial Plan Bylaw No. 2036 $ -

21. Trust Funds

Funds held in trust and administered by The City, which are not included in these consolidated
financial statements, include the following:

2017 2016

Fund Balance
Cemetery Care Fund $ 160,722 $ 152,673
Employee Assistance Program 8,115 8,825
Slag Remediation Trust 20,185 9,907
$ 189,022 $ 171,405

22. Liability for Contaminated Sites

Management has prepared an inventory of sites that are no longer in productive use. These sites have
been evaluated by management to be at low risk of contamination exceeding applicable environmental
standards which would require remediation. Therefore, no liability has been recognized and included
in these financial statements.

23. Contingent Liabilities

Regional District of Kootenay Boundary

Under the provisions of the Local Government Act, Regional District debt is a direct, joint and several
liability of the Regional District and each member municipality including the City of Grand Forks. The loan
agreements with the Municipal Finance Authority provide that if at any time the scheduled payments
provided for in the agreements are not sufficient to meet the Authority's obligation with respect to such
borrowing, the resulting deficiency becomes the liability of the member municipalities.

Legal Actions

The City is currently engaged in certain legal actions, the outcome of which is not determinable at this
time. Accordingly, no provision has been made in the accounts for these actions. The amountof loss,
if any, arising from these actions will be recorded in the accounts in the period in which the loss is

realized.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

24,

Pension Liability

The City and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed pension plan).
The board of trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for administering the
plan, including investment of assets and administration of benefits. The plan is a multi-employer
defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits are based on a formula. As at December 31,
2016, the plan has about 193,000 active members and approximately 90,000 retired members. Active
members include approximately 38,000 contributors from local governments.

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan and
adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member
contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary’s calculated contribution rate is based on the entry-age
normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer contributions
sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plan. This rate may be adjusted for the
amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of any unfunded
actuarial liability.

The most recent valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2015, indicated a $2,224
million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. As a result of the 2015
basic account actuarial vaiuation surplus and pursuait to the joint trustee agreement, $1,827 million
was transferred to the rate stabilization account and $297 million of the surplus ensured the required
contribution rates remained unchanged.

The City of Grand Forks paid $280 464 (2016 - $274 612) for employer contributions to the plan in
fiscal 2017.

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2018, with results available in 2019.

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is
because the plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the plan in aggregate, resulting in
no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to individual employers
participating in the plan.

Future Accounting Changes

PS 2200 - Related Party Disclosures

This new section defines a related party and establishes disclosure requirements for related
party transactions. Disclosure of information about related party transactions and their underlying
relationship is required when such transactions have occurred at a value other than that which
would have taken place with unrelated parties. This section applies to fiscal years beginning on
or after April 1, 2017, with early adoption permitted.

PS 3210 - Assets

This new section provides guidance for applying the definition of assets set out in Financial
Statement Concepts, Section PS 1000, and establishes general disclosure standards for assets.
Disclosure of information about the major categories of assets that are not recognized is required.
When an asset is not recognized because a reasonable estimate of the amount involved cannot
be made, the reason(s) for this should be disclosed. This Section applies to fiscal years
beginning on or after April 1, 2017, with early adoption permitted.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

PS 3320 - Contingent Assets
This section defines and establishes disclosure standards for contingent assets. Contingent
assets are possible assets arising from existing conditions or situations involving uncertainty,
which will ultimately be resolved when one or more future events, not wholly within the public
sector entity's control, occur or fail to occur. Resolution of the uncertainty will confirm the
existence or non-existence of the asset. This standard applies to fiscal years beginning on or
after April 1,2017, with early adoption permitted.

PS 3380 -Contractual Rights
Contractual rights are rights to economic resources arising from contracts or agreements that will
result in a future asset and revenue. They may include contractual rights to receive payments
under shared cost agreements or lease payments. Disclosure of information about contractual
rights under this section applies to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017, with early
adoption permitted.

25. Segmented Information

The City's operations and activities are organized into various funds and departments for management
reporting. The costs related to the provision of services within a particular department or fund are
disclosed in the segmented information presented below.

The General Fund includes services provided by the City such as general government services,
protective services, development services, recreation and culture, transportation services and public
works, and environmental health and public health services. The utility operations are comprised of the
water, electrical and wastewater utilities, each accounting for its own operations and programs within their
own funds.

Revenues within the General Fund have been allocated to the various activities where they are directly
attributable to that department. Taxation and other revenues which are not directly related to a particular
activity are reported under General Government Services and have not been apportioned to the other
departments within the General Fund.

General Government Services

General government operations are primarily funded by property taxation. The expenses within the
department include those for legislative, general administration, finance, and communications.

Protective Services

Protective services are comprised of fire protection services, building inspection, bylaw enforcement,
and victim services. Grand Forks Fire/Rescue provides fire and emergency services to both the City
and rural area through a contract for services with the Regional District of Kootenay Boundary.

Environmental and Public Health Services

Environmental Health services include solid and yard waste collection services contracted through
agreement between the City and the Regional District Of Kootenay Boundary.

Public Health services relate to operation and maintenance of the cemetery.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Planning and Development Services

The Planning and Development services department provides engineering services support to facilities,
parks, roads, water, wastewater and electrical for Infrastructure projects, as well as planning supporl for
subdivisions and development, ensuring compliance with zoning and land use provisions of the
community plan.

Transportation Services and Public Works

The transportation and Public Works segment includes costs for the maintenance of city streets and
sidewalks, snow removal services, airport operations, maintenance and operation of the vehicle fleet,
and general administrative costs for Public Works.

Recreation and Cultural Services

This segment includes costs related to the maintenance and repair of publicly owned buildings, in
addition to costs for operation of parks and the City campground, and for community events support
and fee for service agreements.

Electrical Utility

This segment includes all of the operating activities related to the provision of electrical services to the
majority of properties within the city boundaries. Electricity is purchased from the FortisBC Inc.
electrical utility for resale to the City’s customers, while services are provided by the City’s own electrical
crews.

Water Utility

This segment includes all of the operating activities related to the treatment and distribution of water
throughout the City.

Wastewater Utility

This segment includes all of the operating activities related to the collection and treatment of wastewater
throughout the City.

26. Comparative Figures
Certain of the comparative figures have been restated to conform to the current year's presentation.
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Regular Meeting June 11, 2018

The Corporation of the City of Grand Forks

Regular Meeting of Council

MINUTES
Meeting #: R-2018-11
Date: Monday, June 11, 2018, 7:00 pm
Location: 7217 - 4th Street, City Hall Council Chambers
Present: Mayor Frank Konrad

Councillor Julia Butler

Councillor Chris Hammett

Councillor Colleen Ross

Councillor Christine Thompson (via phone until 7:34 pm)
Councillor Beverley Tripp

Absent: Councillor Neil Krog (with notice)

Staff: Diane Heinrich - Chief Administrative Officer / Corporate Officer
Daniel Drexler - Deputy Corporate Officer
Dolores Sheets - Manager of Development & Engineering
Services
Cavan Gates - Deputy Manager of Operations & Sustainability
David Bruce - Manager of Inspection & Bylaw Services

GALLERY

1. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Konrad called the June 11, 2018, Regular Meeting to order at 7:01 pm.
2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
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Adopt agenda
June 11, 2018, Regular Meeting agenda
Resolution #: R178/18/6/11

Moved by: Ross
Seconded by: Hammett

THAT Council adopts the June 11, 2018, Regular Meeting agenda as
presented.

Carried

3. MINUTES

a.

Adopt minutes - Special to go In-Camera
May 22, 2018, Special to go In-Camera Meeting minutes
Resolution #: R179/18/6/11

Moved by: Ross
Seconded by: Hammett

THAT Council adopts the May 22, 2018, Special to go In-Camera
Meeting minutes as presented.

Carried

Adopt minutes - Regular
May 22, 2018, Regular Meeting minutes
Resolution #: R180/18/6/11

Moved by: Ross
Seconded by: Hammett

THAT Council adopts the May 22, 2018, Regular Meeting minutes as
presented.
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Carried

C. Adopt minutes - Special to go In-Camera
May 28, 2018, Special to go In-Camera Meeting minutes
Resolution #: R181/18/6/11

Moved by: Ross
Seconded by: Hammett

THAT Council adopts the May 28, 2018, Special to go In-Camera
Meeting minutes as presented.

Carried

4. REGISTERED PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS

a. Development Permit Application No. DP 2018-002 Proposed free-standing
restaurant with a drive-thru and patio at 441 Central Avenue

Development and Engineering Services

Ryan Siersma of Dillon Consulting gave a brief presentation regarding the
development, ownership group (family operation), local community
supporters, site and parking challenges, design elements, way-finding
signage, and economic potential.

Discussion ensued regarding:

« economic growth and economic potential for community

» drive through traffic concerns

» possible congestion issues

« concerns about location

« parking concerns and arrangements with Christian Center behind Save
on Foods

« form and character of proposed development

» general developer interest in Grand Forks is important

* using existing infrastructure, infill development and existing capacity
are being used

» charitable work and community involvement

+ way-finding signage part of City's overall signage project
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* possibility to have a "no-drive through" policy

Resolution #: R182/18/6/11

Moved by: Hammett
Seconded by: Thompson

THAT Council approves Development Permit application No. DP
2018-002 for a 40 seat, free-standing restaurant, drive-thru and
outdoor patio to be located at 441 Central Avenue, legally described
as Lot A, District Lot 108, SDYD, Plan KAP34395, in accordance with
the site layout and development drawings contained in Appendix I.

Carried

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

6. REPORTS, QUESTIONS AND INQUIRIES FROM MEMBERS OF COUNCIL

a.

Written Reports of Council
Corporate Officer's Report

Councillor Thompson excused herself from the meeting at 7:34 pm and
did not return.

Discussion ensued regarding the reports:

* motion regarding the report from staff regarding Tax Revitalization
options (Councillor Hammett's report)

+ BC Housing update regarding housing - the CAO advised that there is
no new information available at this time

» other questions (Councillor Tripp's report) will most likely be answered
through FAQ released by EOC and at Community meeting on
Wednesday

* improved communication between EOC-Staff-RDKB-Council

» survey within business community compare insurance coverages and
claims results

« upcoming meetings with Insurance Bureau of Canada representatives
to support citizens and businesses with insurance related questions

» learning curve for everyone involved - biggest flooding disaster in BC
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Resolution #: R183/18/6/11

Moved by: Ross
Seconded by: Hammett

THAT all written reports of Council submitted to the June 11, 2018,
Regular Meeting be received.

Carried

Resolution #: R184/18/6/11

Moved by: Hammett
Seconded by: Ross

THAT Council instruct staff to research and prepare areport to the
COTW, including a draft bylaw, for a revitalization tax exemption for
downtown landlords who were impacted by flooding and wish to
further improve their structures (interior and/or exterior) that comply
with the city’s form and character policy. This tax exemption bylaw
will only be available for 5 years and will expire in 2023.

Carried

7. REPORT FROM COUNCIL'S REPRESENTATIVE TO THE REGIONAL

DISTRICT OF KOOTENAY BOUNDARY

a.

Verbal Report - RDKB Representative
Corporate Officer's Report

Verbal report from Council's representative to the Regional District of
Kootenay Boundary

Read the RDKB agendas here:
https://rdkb.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/314

Mayor Konrad gave an update regarding:
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RDKB Board Meeting:

» flooding update

* role of EOC

» assistance from agencies

+ rapid damage assistance training

* recovery stage transition

» resiliency center opening

« funding and assistance from Province

» tipping fees and landfill hours waived

* Area E’s request to withdraw from the Boundary Economic
Development Service (BEDS) — Boundary Community Development
Commissions (BCDC) to review service

« cannabis legislation review

* Recovery Manager and process for EOC transition to recovery stage

+ Kettle River Watershed service — possible referendum at election

BCDC meeting:

* Area E’s request to withdraw from the Boundary Economic
Development Service (BEDS)

* Animal control program with commissionaires extension

* Recreation Manager - request for condition assessment of curling rink

Director Russell was absent at the COTW this morning but Mayor Konrad
gave a brief update on his behalf:

« agricultural plan can be received but can be discussed at a later time
with Director Russell in attendance
« Trails master plan moved to phase 2 - consultation phase

Resolution #: R185/18/6/11

Moved by: Ross
Seconded by: Hammett

THAT Mayor Konrad's report on the activities of the Regional District
of Kootenay Boundary, given verbally at this meeting be received.
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Carried

8. RECOMMENDATIONS FROM STAFF FOR DECISIONS

9. REQUESTS ARISING FROM CORRESPONDENCE

a.

Grand Forks Slow-Pitch Tournament

Letter of request for permission of a Special Occasion Liquor Licence from
5:00-10:00 pm on July 14 and from 11:00 am-10:00 pm on July 15 and 16,
2018, at Dick Bartlett Park for the annual slow-pitch tournament.

Resolution #: R186/18/6/11

Moved by: Hammett
Seconded by: Butler

THAT Council approves the issuing of a Special Occasion Liquor
Licence to the Grand Forks Slow-Pitch Tournament from 5:00-10:00
pm on July 14 and from 11:00 am-10:00 pm on July 15 and 16, 2018,
at Dick Bartlett Park, subject to obtaining third party (party alcohol)
liability insurance naming the City of Grand Forks as an additional
insured on that policy; all event liquor providers to hold a Serving It
Right Licence Certificate and ICBC "Drinking and Driving" warning
posters to be displayed.

Carried

CannaFest

Letter of request for a Special Occasion Liquor Licence and extension of
the Noise Control Bylaw for August 9, 10, and 11, 2018.

Resolution #: R187/18/6/11

Moved by: Ross
Seconded by: Hammett

THAT Council approves the issuing of a Special Occasion Liquor
Licence to CannaFest Music Festival Ltd. for the CannaFest 2018
event from August 9-11, 2018, between the hours of 2:00 pm-

midnight each day at James Donaldson Park, subject to obtaining
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third party (party alcohol) liability insurance naming the City of
Grand Forks as an additional insured on that policy; all event liquor
providers to hold a Serving It Right Licence Certificate and ICBC
"Drinking and Driving" warning posters to be displayed.

Carried

Resolution #: R188/18/6/11

Moved by: Ross
Seconded by: Hammett

THAT Council approves to extend the Noise Control Bylaw No. 1963
to 1:00 am, from August 9-11, 2018, each day for the CannaFest
event.

Carried

10. INFORMATION ITEMS

a.

Senator for BC
Correspondence regarding border implications of Bill C-45
Discussion ensued regarding:

+ possible communication regarding potential legal issues for the public
» federal US law issue at border crossing
» possible upcoming legalization

Grand Forks Downtown Business Association
Flood Disaster Mitigation
Discussion ensued regarding:

» back flow prevention on storm drains - gates are on most outlets

» during flooding event - too much positive pressure caused the gates to
stay partially open
+ letter was sent by DBA to all local governments and to the Province
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11.
12.
13.

14.

BYLAWS
LATE ITEMS
QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC AND THE MEDIA

Kate Saylors, Grand Forks Gazette, inquired from Dillon Consulting (Tim Horton's
developer) regarding local traffic compared to visitors; and opening hours - she
was advised by Ryan Siersma that they can directly contact the owners and
developers together at a later time

Les Johnson, GFTV - believes Tim Horton's coming to town is positive; explained
local knowledge regarding difficulties about crossing the border

Evelin Skofield - concerned about possible impacts on 2nd street businesses due
to Tim Horton's coming to town - She was advised that

» Council can't choose location as it is private property

* land owner is doing development

* most likely will benefit the downtown core

« create employment

+ add tax base

« development permit is the only item Council can use to ensure developers
fulfill the development requirements

ADJOURNMENT

The June 11, 2018, Regular Meeting was adjourned at 8:09 pm.
Resolution #: R189/18/6/11

Moved by: Ross
Seconded by: Hammett
THAT the June 11, 2018, Regular Meeting be adjourned at 8:09 pm.

Carried

Mayor Frank Konrad Deputy Corporate Officer - Daniel Drexler
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The Corporation of the City of Grand Forks
Public Hearing of Council

MINUTES

PH-2018-01
Monday, June 18, 2018, 6:00 pm
7217 - 4th Street, City Hall Council Chambers

Present: Mayor Frank Konrad
Councillor Julia Butler
Councillor Chris Hammett
Councillor Colleen Ross
Councillor Christine Thompson
Councillor Beverley Tripp

Absent: Councillor Neil Krog

Staff: Diane Heinrich - Chief Administrative Officer / Corporate Officer
Cavan Gates - Deputy Manager of Operations & Sustainability
Graham Watt - Senior Planner
Kevin McKinnon — Assistant Fire Chief

GALLERY

1. Call to Order

The Mayor called the Public Hearing to Order at 6:00pm and read the following
statement:

Page 1

Agenda Page 65 of 145



Public Hearing June 18, 2018

(a) The purpose of this Hearing is to consider certain bylaws which, if adopted,
shall amend the City of Grand Forks - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 1919
and/or Zoning Bylaw No. 2039.

(b) All persons who believe that their interest in property within the boundaries of
the City is affected by the proposed bylaw(s) shall be afforded a reasonable
opportunity to be heard or to present written submissions respecting matters
contained in the bylaw(s) that are the subject of this Hearing. No one will be or
should feel discouraged or prevented from making their views known. This
Hearing is open to the public and all representations to Council form part of the
public record. A live video and audio feed may be broadcast and recorded by
GFTV.

(c) All information, correspondence, petitions or reports that have been received
concerning the subject bylaws have been made available to the public. The
correspondence and petitions received after June 06, 2018 (date of notification)
are available for inspection during the course of this hearing and are located on
the information table in the foyer of the Council Chamber.

(d) Members of Council may ask questions, if they so wish; however, the main
function of Council members is to listen to the views of the public. It is not the
function of Council to debate the merits of the proposed bylaw with individual
citizens or with each other at this Hearing.

(e) Council debate on the proposed bylaw(s) is scheduled to take place during
the next Regular Council meeting after the conclusion of this Hearing. It should
be noted, however, that for some items a final decision may not be able to be
reached at that meeting.

(f) It must be emphasized that Council will not receive any representation from
the applicant or members of the public after conclusion of this Hearing.

(g) During a Public Hearing, people sometimes become enthusiastic or
emotional. Regardless of whether you favour or oppose any application or
argument, please refrain from applause or other expressions of emotion.
Restraint enables others whose views may or may not coincide with your own to
exercise their right to express their views and have them heard in as impartial a
forum as possible.

2. Individual Bylaw Submissions

The Mayor read the following hearing procedure:

(a) Brief description of the application by City Staff (Planning Department);
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Public Hearing June 18, 2018

(b) The Chair will request that the Corporate Officer indicate all information,
correspondence, petitions or reports received for the record.

(c) The Chair will call for representation from the public in attendance as follows:

1. The microphone at the delegates table has been provided for any person(s)
wishing to make representation at the Hearing.

2. The Chair will recognize ONLY speakers at the delegation table.

3. Those who wish to speak concerning the proposed bylaw should, at the
appropriate time, commence your address to the Council and the meeting by
clearly stating your name and address. Please provide your name and
address on the speaker sign in sheet.

4. Speakers are encouraged to limit their remarks to 5 minutes; however, if they
have additional information, they may address Council again after all other
members of the public have been heard a first time.

(d) Once the public has had an opportunity to comment, the applicant is given an

opportunity to respond to any questions raised. The applicant is requested to

keep the response to a total of 10 minutes maximum.

(e) Questions of staff by members of Council must be asked before the Public
Hearing is closed and not during debate of the bylaw at the next Regular
Meeting, unless for clarification.

a. Proposed Zoning Amendment Bylaw 2039-Al
Development and Engineering

Presentation by Staff (Senior Planner) of bylaw/zoning changes, and he
spoke to:

Cannabis retail sites - Core/Neighbourhood Commercial, Industrial zones
Cannabis production, processing. distribution -

Other proposed zoning changes - R4/R4A minimum parcel sizes

-Permit mobile homes in residential zones south of Kettle River
(North/South Ruckle)

-Increase maximum height for accessory dwelling units (carriage houses,
garden suites)

-Increase lot size coverage maximum for accessory buildings from 50%
coverage of home to 100% coverage of home.

Council was further advised of correspondence received - Email received
from Allie McMaster (Atwood Road) on the afternoon of June 18 in support
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June 18, 2018

of proposal, with the suggestion that buffer zone around schools be
increased.

Public comments:

(1) Ed Lautard (Riverside Dr) - Just as important as sales location is
where cannabis will be consumed. Doesn't feel that it's fair that residents
should be subjected to the smell of cannabis being smoked in

public. [Letter submitted to Corp officer and read into record. Believe
bylaw should prohibit smoking of cannabis in city limits]

(2) Nadine Heiberg (1730 68th Ave) - Doesn't want bylaw to stifle people's
access to cannabis.

(3) John Siemens (833 65th Ave) - Not speaking against medicinal use of
marijuana, not speaking toward private use in homes, speaking to concern
of use by young people and easy access to cannabis on the street. Ask
that change 58.3(b) 30m from boundary of youth facility to 200m.

(4) Deborah Lafleur (7957 18th St) - Concerns as to where in city growing
will be permitted. Allergic to cannabis, doesn't feel that growing should be
permitted within city limits. Believe that marijuana and bacon should be
added to smoking bylaw.

(5) Gene Koch (5955 Kenmore Rd) - When people are asked to make
decisions, he felt information was missing. If growing of cannabis is an
agricultural product, why is it not relegated to farm lands? He expressed
concern regarding light, noise, odor pollution, and further concerns with
the Vienna Woods area, in that Area "D" residents were not consulted.
--The Senior Planner demonstrated on a map how the 100m buffer area
respects residential areas with regards to light, noise buffer.

--Councillor Butler asked for further clarification of buffer areas.

--The Senior Planner again demonstrated on a map using different areas
for further example.

Mr. Koch questioned regarding areas where grow operations may be
established and whether crime rates increase?

(6) Peter Douglas (7441 6th St) - Concern regarding sighting restrictions
of cannabis retail locations vs. sighting limitations of alcohol venues. He
expressed concerns regarding where cannabis will be used.

(7) CIiff Krystians (5950 Kenmore Rd) advised that he purchased property
a year ago, and would not have invested in property if he knew that a grow
operation could be in the vicinity. He was concerned that his property
value would decrease.
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Public Hearing June 18, 2018

--Councillor Thompson asked for clarification of buffer zones, whether they
were only from properties within city?

--The Sr. Planner advised that the 100m buffer is from any lot zoned
residential, including Area D properties.

Mr. Krystians felt the 100m buffer was not sufficient.

(8) Nadine Heiberg asked whether people will still be allowed to grow 4
plants at home?
--She was advised that is was Federal regulation.

3. Adjournment

The Mayor provided the final calls for representation by asking three times. He
then stated to the gallery that the Public Hearing on the Bylaw was closed.

Councillor Ross - Motion to adjourn public hearing.

The Public Hearing was adjourned at 6:47 pm.

Mayor Frank Konrad Assistant Fire Chief — Kevin
McKinnon
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Subject: FW: Formal Feedback about Cannabis Bylaw
Date: June 19, 2018 9:50:09 AM

From: Elly Macmaster
Sent: June 18, 2018 6:13 PM

Subject: Formal Feedback about Cannabis Bylaw

Dear Mayor and Council,

| wish to provide my formal feedback in support of the sale of cannabis in Grand Forks. | am a Grand
Forks resident, located in Area D, and have lived in here for 5 years.

I am in favour of allowing the sale of cannabis in the downtown core, and/or in the city outskirts in
either a dedicated shop, or in a shared business location setting.

| think that cannabis shops should not be visible or located within 500 meters of a school. Obviously
students will soon adjust to seeing cannabis shops in their town, just as they see liquor stores.
However, just as we don't located liquor stores close to schools, so to should we keep cannabis
shops from operating close to them.

Overall, | support adults over the age of 18 years of age having the choice to purchase and consume
cannabis and related products for their personal use, whether that be recreational use or medical
use.

Thank you for your consideration.

Elly Macmaster

Grand Forks, BC

Agenda Page 70 of 145


mailto:info@grandforks.ca

4 20
ED and MARY LAUTARD "ﬁé/mz ﬂ/mamzf

/JZ‘%/ /ﬂf,é/c Mﬂ“y
a0 /8 Do)8 .

/ Wﬁ;/&c/ A S //fé/
/l&'&%ﬂfwﬁl@{

; Ceon .
18 June 2018 W >é/- %& 243/

Mayor and Council

City of Grand Forks, B.C.

Re: Open House and Public Hearing - CANNABLS
18 June 2018

We are profoundly concerned about bylaws being developed by the City of Grand Forks on
the cannabis issue. Enforcement of bylaws will be challenging.

It is our conviction that public smoking of cannabis must be banned within city limits.

Sincerely,
Ed Lautard Mary D.Lautard
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To: Regular Meeting

From: Corporate Services

Date: 2018-06-25

Subject: Petition — Standing Strong for Vienna Woods
Background

On June 14, 2018, a petition was delivered to the office of the Corporate Officer and
received in accordance with Section 82 of the Community Charter.

Section 82 of the Community Charter states:

(1) A petition to a council is deemed to be presented to council when it is
filed with the corporate officer.

(2) A petition to a council must include the full name and residential address
of each petitioner.

Under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (FOIPPA), the City is not
able to display the full addresses and signatures publicly. If Council wishes, staff can
provide a hard copy of the petition.

Due to time constraints, the Corporate Officer was not able to verify full names, residential
addresses, and signatures of each petitioner in the petition and if these items were
correctly represented by each individual. Although not being able to verify each individual
address, the following is an estimated breakdown by community:

Christina Lake: 12

Christian Valley: 1

Grand Forks: 157 (City and Area D)
Greenwood: 2

Salmo: 2

Westbridge: 1

All information pertaining to the petition is attached and was delivered by Joanie Koch-
Kalanj along with the request to put the petition on the agenda for the next meeting. Ms.
Koch-Kalanj was informed via email that the petition would be on the agenda for the June
25, 2018 Regular Meeting of Council.

Benefits or Impacts
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General

As with petitions of this nature, Council may choose to receive for information and/or for
discussion purposes. Council is not obligated to act on the request contained within the
petition.

Policy/Legislation
Community Charter Section 82

Attachments
Petition regarding Standing Strong for Vienna Woods

20f3
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Report Approval Details

Document Title: 2018-06-25 - Memo - Vienna Woods Petition.docx

Attachments: - Koch-Kalanj, Joanie re Vienna Woods
Petition_Redacted2_reduced.pdf

Final Approval Date: ' Jun 15, 2018

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined
below:

Diane Heinrich - Jun 15, 2018 - 10:32 AM

30f3
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Considering Opportunities. Keeping Promises. Providing Hop

Submitted: June 14, 2018

Please add this letter and attachments to the Agenda for the June 25, 2018, 7:00pm Regular Meeting of
Council as Correspondence, and have this letter read aloud and display the attachments

Re: Follow up from the June 11, 2018 meeting of Committee Meeting of the Whole presentation:
“Standing Strong for the Vienna Woods” as presented by the delegation of Joanie Koch-Kalanj
& Designated Representatives of Concerned Educators, Youth and Citizens for Restoration,
Conservation & Preservation of GF Vienna Woods

Your Worship, Mayor Konrad, and Members of Council,

We are all now in the process of rebuilding from the devastation created by the recent flooding.
Neighbours and strangers from further afield have been pulling together to help rebuild — rebuilding a
sense of community, a sense of pride, a sense of contribution — and we are finding that we have a great

deal of strength and resiliency.

With this rebuilding, comes opportunity. We are being offered opportunities to work together to plan
a renewal and to create an inclusive, safe, resilient and sustainable community.

Our request to have the Vienna Woods re-zoned as an Urban Park and Natural Wildlife Sanctuary is a
timely matter considering the renewal opportunities now facing our community. And while it may not
seem imminently important, it is, as Councillors Krog indicated at the May 7, 2018 Committee Meeting
of the Whole that negotiations to sell off part of the Vienna Woods forested lands to a business interest
are currently underway. We are suggesting a viable option, that the potential business operator be
offered non-forested city-owned lands for sale.

We understand and are appreciative of the Council’s commitment to increasing business development in
Grand Forks, however we would also like to see their strong commitment to preserving the Vienna
Woods as part of our environmental heritage. We believe that BOTH of these needs can be met.

As Mayor Konrad recognized at the June 11, 2018 Regular Council meeting, a number of people
attending the meeting were there to support our proposal. Some of these people were directly
impacted by the floods, yet despite their immediate worries, they felt a need to show their support for
protecting the Vienna Woods by attending the meeting. This is part of the “ripple effect” of neighbours
helping neighbours with the goal of pulling together to make things better. As Susan Aglukark’s “Song
of the Land” speaks to -- to help to build a “Tomorrow” which is “sparkling in the eye of a child”, and
where “elders are cherished”. This ‘tomorrow’ includes our environment and the elderly 90-year-old

o

;%
Rﬁ.

Ponderosa Pine trees in Vienna Woods. - S
Please find attached: p "u 3% \Q
1. Information package from Delegation Presentation of June 11, 2018, 9:00am. Committee of the f 1' - 3
Whole Meeting entitled: “Standing Strong for the Vienna Woods”. L:":T' % s
2. Hard copy of a Petition entitled “Help Save the Vienna Woods from Commercial Development”*, &“ ...... ™ § 3
currently containing 175 signatures (on 22 pages). @:vf’@ é
3. Online Petition* showing 637 signatures as at June 14, 2018, 11:00am, indicating a more wide- éﬂ f;% N %

spread and ‘global’ concern for preserving the Vienna Woods forest
Link: https://www.change.org/p/bc-save-the-grand-forks-vienna-woods
*both petitions will be continuous and referenced at a future date
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Correspondence submitted for June 25, 2018 Grand Forks BC Regular Council Meeting F‘“

C//O*

Agenda Page 75 of 14 8

(
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? Save The OGrand Forks Vienna Woods

A7 have signed. Let'x gat to 1000/

As the presenter at the June 11, 2018 Committee Meeting of the Whole representing Concerned
Educators, Youth and Citizens for the Restoration, Conservation & Preservation of GF Vienna Woods, |
commented that teachers are also learners who can benefit from mentorship. Teachers act as
facilitators. We act as intermediaries. We encourage collaboration and engagement with all
‘stakeholders’. We look for ways to be inclusive.

This fall, aligned with Provincial Education Guidelines, local teachers will be responding to the questions
initiated by the students involved in the Global Citizenship Group. These will include offering placed-
based learning opportunities for students and helping them to gain a deeper understanding of the
environmental impact that the Vienna Woods forest has in the overall ecology of the valley — from air
quality to protecting species at risk as Fred Marshall indicated in The Boundary Sentinel article of March
26, 2018.

Quoting The Boundary Sentinel March 26* article further, it goes on to say: “Marshall — who worked for
Forest Services for many years — told council the forest is one of the last areas of a very unique
ecosystem in the region. Dominated by Ponderosa Pine, yellow pine, dryland desert and bunchgrass, as
well as a host of wildlife, birds and raptors, the 90-year-old forest contains one of the last remnants of
the “dryland” ecosystem, he explained. “And it’s quite a unique one and its becoming more rare as we
develop across the province. So | would like to think it would be worth preserving as a protected area
for the city as a park.” He goes on to say that although active nests in the area may be low, the use of
the Vienna Woods by a variety of bird species is high and that Vienna Woods acts as a ‘buffer” to protect
nests in other areas of the valley.

We are suggesting that it is possible to bridge the goals of economic growth with ecological
preservation.

In addition to preserving and restoring the forested lands, remediation efforts will also create jobs,
provide educational and career opportunities for our youth that support sound ecological management
practices, and create mentoring opportunities with knowledgeable ‘elders’ in our community.

Longer-term, and in association with interested groups (eg. non profit societies, university research
outreach projects, BCIT Forest Ranger program, etc), a variety of environmentally-sustainable economic
spin-offs will also be realized that will benefit the community while still protecting the tenuous ecological
aspects of the forest. For example, carbon credit programs.

It took a century to create the habitat that exists in the Vienna Woods Forest. Disturbing it would cause
irreparable damage and have a ripple effect throughout the entire Grand Forks Valley. We want to
preserve our environmental heritage, in perpetuity, to create a long-lasting legacy for us, our children,
grand-children, and future generations.

Respe fully submitted,

}}] cﬂA a,/nzy;f
Jod le och-Kalanj & Desugnated Representatives of Concerned Educators, Youth and Citizens for
Restoration, Conservation & Preservation of GF Vienna Woods

Enc. Attachments: / 2 # pages

Correspondence submitted for June 25, 2018 Grand Forks BC Regular Council Meeting
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Standing Strong for the Vienna Woods: Encouraging Restoration, Preservation and Conservation
Presentation to Mayor and Council, Grand Forks, BC June 11, 2018
by Joanie Koch-Kalanj, on behalf of Concerned Educators, Youth and Citizens

It took a century to create the habitat that exists in the Vienna Woods Forest.

A unique ecosystem exists in the Grand Forks Vienna Woods that provides species-rich biodiversity and wildlife habitats. Disturbing it
would cause irreparable damage and create a ripple effect throughout the entire Grand Forks Valley. We want to preserve our
environmental heritage, in perpetuity, to create a long-lasting legacy for us, our children, grand-children, and future generations.

What this presentation is about:

Our goal is to help the Mayor and Council to ‘see the forest and the trees’ — and realize the importance of preserving
and enhancing the Vienna Woods forest and its unique ecosystem ~ seeing everything the natural world does for us.

What is our desired outcome:

Our request is to have the City-owned lands of ‘Vienna Woods’ re-zoned as an “Urban Forest and Natural Wildlife

Preserve’, in perpetuity.

The stakeholders who are affected by this issue:

* All of the citizens of the Grand Forks Valley — for health, enjoyment and heritage values and benefits.

All of the animals and plants that inhabit the Vienna Woods forest — for protection and preservation of diversity of

every species, especially those species at risk.

The environment — for protection of the unique ecosystem that exists in Vienna Woods including the fullness of life

from microbes, fauna and flora, to the benefits the trees provide to reduce carbon in its role in global warming.

* The elected officials — if they wish to be re-elected they must do a good job of representing the true values of the
citizens. Many of our youth will soon be of voting age and they will be active in civic engagement.

How can we bridge the goals of City Council for economic growth while protecting the Vienna Woods forests?

* Identify skills development and career options for youth that support sound ecological management practices

Explore and pursue multi-level funding options for Vienna Woods forest enhancement, youth employment, and

professional mentorship — for example, Fred Marshall’s Remediation Plan; tree-planting/Trees Canada example

* Carbon credit programs and the trees contribution to air quality

What approaches can we discuss that will have a positive impact on the outcome?

* Celebrate and protect what the Vienna Woods forest offers us — beauty of Nature at our doorstep, air filtering and
carbon sequestering abilities of the Ponderosa Pines, noise buffer for residents and industries, opportunities for

placed-based learning, indigenous perspectives, pride of heritage and cultural preservation etc.
* Allow Vienna Woods to continue, and support its growth as an epicenter of species-rich biodiversity as referenced
in reports provided by Biologist Jenny Coleshill, Forester Fred Marshall, the Granby Wilderness Society, private
citizens
Creating a sense of civic pride in those people who make a contribution to improving the quality of life within our
community and help to provide a cultural and environmental legacy
What challenges present themselves and should be avoided by elected officials:
* The lack of foresight for the longevity of our natural forests which diminish our environmental heritage
* Lack of accountability, wasteful spending , misuse of taxpayers dollars and grant monies
Lack of respect and valuing of input from concerned citizens when making decisions about publically-owned lands
that have historical, cultural and environmental significance
Questions posed by GFSS Global Citizenship Club with regard to preserving, restoring and conserving “Vienna Woods”
as a Legacy for future generations — May 2018

* Not only does planting trees benefit the community by creating natural buffers and relocating animals, but it also
would create a source that the city could use for student involvement. In what ways would industrializing these
woods help bring the future generations of children into the community?

Would you be able to ensure that the wildlife population would be able to function healthily as they do now, and if
not, how according to the Canada Wildlife Act, would you be able to have a functioning industrial area that would be
sustainable for all of the wildlife that has lived in the Vienna woods in the past, and still inhabits it now?

Even with the tree policy in place, how would you be able to move all of the living wildlife currently inhabiting areas
such as the Vienna woods, into a place where they would be able to thrive?

In order for the trees to grow healthily after they have been replanted, it would cost time and money. How would
you be able to ensure that in the areas that the trees are planted in, ho person or creature would go through them

and harm the growth of those trees? Agenda Page 78 of 145
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6/8/2018

The 9 Intelligences of Ml Theory

The 9 Intelligences of MI Theory

Intelligence

Skills and Career Preferences

Verbal-Linguistic Intelligence
Well-developed verbal skills and sensitivity to
the sounds, meanings and rhythms of words

Skills - Listening, speaking, writing, teaching.
Careers - Poet, journalist, writer, teacher, lawyer,
politician, translator

Mathematical-Logical Intelligence Ability to
think conceptually and abstractly, and capacity
to discern logical or numerical patterns

Skills - Problem solving (logical & math),
performing experiments

Careers - Scientists, engineers, accountants,
mathematicians

Musical Intelligence
Ability to produce and appreciate rhythm, pitch
and timber

Skills - Singing, playing instruments, composing
music
Careers - Musician, disc jockey, singer, composer

Visual-Spatial Intelligence
Capacity to think in images and pictures, to
visualize accurately and abstractly

Skills - puzzle building, painting, constructing,
fixing, designing objects

Careers - Sculptor, artist, inventor, architect,
mechanic, engineer ,5a; |oy '

Bodily-Kinesthetic Intelligence
Ability to control one's body movements and to
handle objects skillfully

Skills - Dancing, sports, hands on experiments,
acting
Careers - Athlete, PE teacher, dancer, actor,

| firefighter . suyae.om

Interpersonal Intelligence
Capacity to detect and respond appropriately to
the moods, motivations and desires of others

Skills - Seeing from other perspectives, empathy,
counseling, co-operating

Careers - Counselor, salesperson, politician,
business person, minister

Intrapersonal Intelligence
Capacity to be self-aware and in tune with inner
feelings, values, beliefs and thinking processes

Skills - Recognize one’s S/W, reflective, aware of

inner feelings
Careers - Researchers, theorists, philosophers

Naturalist Intelligence
Ability to recognize and categorize plants,
animals and other objects in nature

Skills - Recognize one’s connection to nature, apply

science theory to life
Careers — Scientist, naturalist, landscape architect

Existential Intelligence

Sensitivity and capacity to tackle deep questions
about human existence, such as the meaning of
life, why do we die, and how did we get here

Skills — Reflective and deep thinking, design

abstract theories
Careers — Scientist, philosopher, theologian

hHo/iweb eortland edu/anderemd/learnina/MI%420Tahle htm
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Help us save the Grand Forks VIENNA WOODS

from Commercial Development
e

PETITION ENCOURAGING THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
TO DEVELOP A COMPREHENSIVE MANAGEMENT PLAN
TO ENSURE ALL ITS TREES AND UNIQUE NATURAL AREAS
ARE PROPERLY PROTECTED AND WELL MANAGED.

April 20", 2018

To: Mayor Konrad, and Grand Forks City Council and Staff:

This Petition is to encourage the City to develop and adopt a comprehensive plan and supporting
bylaw to guide the future management of the trees and the several unique natural areas owned by
the City.

Our urban forests and natural areas are the most valuable assets present within and owned by the
City. They make Grand Forks a very beautiful, unique City and hence a very desirable place to live.
The amenity values and ecosystem services provided by these trees and areas should be managed
and protected via a proactive management plan that has the strength of a City Bylaw.

There are many templates available from the (ISA) International Society of Arboriculture which
provide a useful guide for communities embarking on developing such a plan and bylaw. Several
communities in BC already have such plans and bylaws and would likely be willing to share them with
you to assist your staff in developing its own plan and supporting bylaws.

We herein signify our support for this proposal:

Postal
Street City Code Signature
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Help us save the Grand Forks VIENNA WOODS
from Commercial Development

PETITION ENCOURAGING THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
TO DEVELOP A COMPREHENSIVE MANAGEMENT PLAN
TO ENSURE ALL ITS TREES AND UNIQUE NATURAL AREAS
ARE PROPERLY PROTECTED AND WELL MANAGED.

April

20", 2018

To: Mayor Konrad, and Grand Forks City Council and Staff:

This Petition is to encourage the City to develop and adopt a comprehensive plan and supporting
bylaw to guide the future management of the trees and the several unique natural areas owned by

the City.

Our urban forests and natural areas are the most valuable assets present within and owned by the
City. They make Grand Forks a very beautiful, unique City and hence a very desirable place to live.
The amenity values and ecosystem services provided by these trees and areas should be managed
and protected via a proactive management plan that has the strength of a City Bylaw.

There are many templates available from the (ISA) International Society of Arboriculture which
provide a useful guide for communities embarking on developing such a plan and bylaw. Several
communities in BC already have such plans and bylaws and would likely be willing to share them with
you to assist your staff in developing its own plan and supporting bylaws.

We herein signify our support for this propcsat:
House Postal
Name (please print) Number | Street City Code | Signature 7
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Help us save the Grand Forks VIENNA WOODS

from Commercial Development

PETITION ENCOURAGING THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
TO DEVELOP A COMPREHENSIVE MANAGEMENT PLAN
TO ENSURE ALL ITS TREES AND UNIQUE NATURAL AREAS
ARE PROPERLY PROTECTED AND WELL MANAGED.
April 20", 2018

To: Mayor Konrad, and Grand Forks City Council and Staff:

This Petition is to encourage the City to develop and adopt a comprehensive plan and supporting
bylaw to guide the future management of the trees and the several unique natural areas owned by

the City.

Our urban forests and natural areas are the most valuable assets present within and owned by the
City. They make Grand Forks a very beautiful, unique City and hence a very desirable place to live.
The amenity values and ecosystem services provided by these trees and areas should be managed
and protected via a proactive management plan that has the strength of a City Bylaw.

There are many templates available from the S(SA) International Society of Arboriculture which
r

provide a useful guide for communities emba

ing on developing such a plan and bylaw. Several

communities in BC already have such plans and bylaws and would likely be willing to share them with
you to assist your staff in developing its own plan and supporting bylaws.

We herein signify our support for this
House
Name (please print) Number
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Help us save the Grand Forks VIENNA WOODS
from Commercial Development

PETITION ENCOURAGING THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
TO DEVELOP A COMPREHENSIVE MANAGEMENT PLAN
TO ENSURE ALL ITS TREES AND UNIQUE NATURAL AREAS
ARE PROPERLY PROTECTED AND WELL MANAGED.

April 20", 2018

To: Mayor Konrad, and Grand Forks City Council and Staff:

This Petition is to encourage the City to develop and adopt a comprehensive plan and supporting
bylaw to guide the future management of the trees and the several unique natural areas owned by
the City.

Our urban forests and natural areas are the most valuable assets present within and owned by the
City. They make Grand Forks a very beautiful, unique City and hence a very desirable place to live.
The amenity values and ecosystem services provided by these trees and areas should be managed
and protected via a proactive management plan that has the strength of a City Bylaw.

There are many templates available from the (ISA) International Society of Arboriculture which
provide a useful guide for communities embarking on developing such a plan and bylaw. Several
communities in BC already have such plans and bylaws and would likely be willing to share them with
you to assist your staff in developing its own plan and supporting bylaws.

We herein signify our support for this proposal:

House Postal
Name (please print) Number | Street City Code | Signature

: vo i
L;(Ofma Smidth

7 2 - AYe Lrav ak Foc L’;; {HO
C/O‘( \ CW]Q(% 7Svd AV( ClF \Ho

VO H
L e/ Wi |GF ¢ &//}0
. b
i Yot o4t Do, (B.F Be e

;'UDSWT é(av\& ¥o‘f&(5 1 \He

Deonna Sévmﬂo‘g) |

(\)t\n‘; W oo 35 W | (.- vn‘ivi

ek

Midhael Dautel Madet e | G F. \HO

59t v | G F o

Ny cole (70\)() M/

Dondae | gP |88

Lo

Agenda Page 102 of 145



Agenda Page 103 of 145



Agenda Page 104 of 145



Agenda Page 105 of 145



Help us save the Grand Forks VIENNA WOODS
from Commercial Development

PETITION ENCOURAGING THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
TO DEVELOP A COMPREHENSIVE MANAGEMENT PLAN
TO ENSURE ALL ITS TREES AND UNIQUE NATURAL AREAS
ARE PROPERLY PROTECTED AND WELL MANAGED.

April 20", 2018

To: Mayor Konrad, and Grand Forks City Council and Staff:

This Petition is to encourage the City to develop and adopt a comprehensive plan and supporting
bylaw to guide the future management of the trees and the several unique natural areas owned by
the City.

Our urban forests and natural areas are the most valuable assets present within and owned by the
City. They make Grand Forks a very beautiful, unique City and hence a very desirable place to live.
The amenity values and ecosystem services provided by these trees and areas should be managed
and protected via a proactive management plan that has the strength of a City Bylaw.

There are many templates available from the (ISA) International Society of Arboriculture which
provide a useful guide for communities embarking on developing such a plan and bylaw. Several
communities in BC already have such plans and bylaws and would likely be willing to share them with
you to assist your staff in developing its own plan and supporting bylaws.

We herein signify our support for this picposal:
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Help us save the Grand Forks VIENNA WOODS
from Commercial Development

PETITION ENCOURAGING THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS
TO DEVELOP A COMPREHENSIVE MANAGEMENT PLAN
TO ENSURE ALL ITS TREES AND UNIQUE NATURAL AREAS
ARE PROPERLY PROTECTED AND WELL MANAGED.

April 20", 2018

To: Mayor Konrad, and Grand Forks City Council and Staff:

This Petition is to encourage the City to develop and adopt a comprehensive plan and supporting
bylaw to guide the future management of the trees and the several unique natural areas owned by
the City.

Our urban forests and natural areas are the most valuable assets present within and owned by the
City. They make Grand Forks a very beautiful, unique City and hence a very desirable place to live.
The amenity values and ecosystem services provided by these trees and areas should be managed
and protected via a proactive management plan that has the strength of a City Bylaw.

There are many templates available from the (ISA) International Society of Arboriculture which
provide a useful guide for communities embarking on developing such a plan and bylaw. Several
communities in BC already have such plans and bylaws and would likely be willing to share them with
you to assist your staff in developing its own plan and supporting bylaws.

We herein signify our support for this proposal:
House Postal

Signature
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Request for Decision

To: Regular Meeting

From: Procedure Bylaw / Corporate Services

Date: June 25, 2018

Subject: Reports, Questions and Inquiries from the Members of Council

Recommendation: THAT all written reports submitted by members of Council
be received.

Background

Under the City’'s Procedures Bylaw No. 1946, 2013, the Order of Business permits the
members of Council to report to the Community on issues, bring community issues for
discussion and initiate action through motions of Council, ask questions on matters pertaining
to the City Operations and inquire on any issues and reports.

Benefits or Impacts

General

The main advantage of using this approach is to bring the matter before Council on behalf of
constituents. Immediate action might result in inordinate amount of resource inadvertently
directed without specific approval in the financial plan.

Strategic Impact

~
Community Engagement
¢ Members of Council may ask questions, seek clarification and report on issues.

Policy/Legislation
Procedure Bylaw No. 1946, 2013

Recommendation
THAT all written reports submitted by members of Council be received.

Options

1. THAT Council accepts the report.

2. THAT Council does not accept the report.

3. THAT Council refers the matter back to staff for further information.
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Councillor’s Report
June 25, 2018
Julia Butler

It’s been a very busy couple of weeks since our last meeting. Council has met informally on numerous
occasions with residents and staff to discuss the ongoing recovery efforts and regular business of the
city. Communications have definitely improved as we continue to tackle so many daunting issues. Our
CAO has been great at sitting down and talking candidly with council about the progress being made at
the EOC. The big questions that | keep hearing from residents are regarding temporary housing options,
preparations for next spring’s freshet and long-term city planning issues for Ruckle and the downtown
core.

| attended a neighbourhood-organized meeting in North Ruckle, as well as the EOC-organized meetings
in North and South Ruckle and the high school. Land toxicity was a big concern for the residents in
North Ruckle and at the EOC community meeting, the representative from the Ministry of Environment
tried to address the concern by promising a study that would be completed by the end of July. | was
happy to hear that the concerns of the people had already been looked into by the ministry and would
be explored further but the timelines | felt were too long and didn’t give people the assurance they
needed, while cleaning up their properties. Soil testing was requested immediately but the ministry felt
it wasn’t urgent. Although discussion became heated and staff was definitely under fire from residents
emotionally torn by situations they face, | felt there was a lot of good information shared at all three of
the meetings | attended. There was also a definite sense of neighbourhood comradery and caring that
will help carry people through. The prayer flags made by the school children that are now hanging in
the affected areas are really touching. Thanks to the teachers who put this project together.

| was asked this week: “What would we have done if Samaritan’s Purse hadn’t shown up?” Why is there
no provincial or federal response to help home owners with the clean up process? Great questions |
thought! Although | wasn’t able to meet with the premier on his short visit to town, | do feel that the
$2800, offered monthly, to affected families will be a huge help. After the meeting at the high school, |
spoke with the representative from BC Housing to find out why we haven’t received any temporary
housing units yet. | was impressed with his knowledge of responses in other disaster areas in Canada
and around the world. He openly shared with me the many variables and pitfalls in supplying housing.
Because of these variables, he felt that the premier’s gesture of cash was the most effective way of
allowing people to make their own choices around housing. Even though we have such a shortage of
rentals and hotel space, he suggested that people renting RVs for the short term was the best way to go.
Long term, | have confidence that the housing committee on the recovery team being formed by the
EOC will have better solutions in place.

On the 18™, staff held an open house at city hall, to give the public an opportunity to come down and
ask questions about the changes to our zoning bylaw. | attended with councillor Tripp and it was a great
opportunity for us to get a deeper understanding of not only the people’s concerns but also the rational
used by staff, in the changes proposed. Changes included zoning for cannabis production and
distribution, as well as minor changes to allow mobile homes in flood affected areas. The public hearing
held that night was a statutory requirement to allow official input from the community on the same
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topics. Residents attending the public hearing only made statements on the zoning for cannabis. From
what | heard at the open house and the public hearing | would like to put forward a notice of motion:

That council direct staff to create a smoking bylaw to address the open public consumption of
cannabis prior to legalization.

Because of the flooding, the Rec Commission had not met in a couple months until June 14%". We
welcomed Susan Routley as a new member at large. Susan is a long-time resident, with a background in
education and a passion for the pool and arena. Kristy Luke attended as a delegation to give council an
update on the learning garden and to request flood relief for the Kung Fu group who have been
displaced from the Senior’s Centre due to the flood. The Commission recognised that we may have
other groups needing to use the viewing room and discussed how to fairly price the room for different
groups while still providing flood relief. We decided to send the request to staff to see about running
the program in house, to also help them with insurance requirements. The contract for the facility
assessment study was awarded and extended to include the curling rink as well. The quote came in well
under budget and will be 50% grant funded. The pool will soon be on the summer schedule and a
special swim rate will be implemented for families on Tuesday evenings. Warm water weekends have
also been a success and will be continued starting again in September. Unfortunately, the flood has
resulted in another event being cancelled for the year. The triathlon at Christina Lake will not take
place, due to lack of registration. The Woman’s Fast Pitch tournament did go ahead though and was
another huge success! Five teams competed at the Rock Creek Fair grounds from the 15" -17" and the
Grand Forks Rattlers took home the trophy after a highly competitive and fun filled weekend. Slow pitch
finals are also getting under way in Grand Forks with an eleven team, single elimination knock out.

| look forward to seeing everyone down at Gyro Park on July 1%, for this year’s Canada Day celebrations
and a day to celebrate our community spirit and resiliency!

Respectfully submitted,

Julia Butler
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Councillor’s Report for June 25th 2018

Neighborhood and Community Meetings

On June 5™, 8™ and 9™, | participated in neighborhood meetings which were held in North and South
Ruckle areas, and Johnston’s Flats. These meetings were held for residents to be updated on the flood,
and to ask questions. Several Emergency Operations Center (EOC) managers were on hand to provide
information and respond to questions from residents that were specific to their neighborhoods. Chris
Marsh, EOC Director, described the role of the EOC in the initial flood event stages. In total, over 100
people were involved in the EOC operations center, which transitioned to a recovery center once the
state of emergency and evacuation orders were lifted, Marsh said. Other officials from the Disaster
Financial Assistance (DFA), Provincial Health Authority, Red Cross, several City managers, some
members of council, the Mayor, RDKB staff and Area D Director Roly Russell were also on hand to
answer questions, and more importantly, listen to residents’ comments/questions. Residents were,
understandably, very upset, and some exchanges were pointed, and at times heated. Some of the
expressed concerns were for added neighborhood security overnight, the level of soil contamination
due to the sewage, and issues around sampling of soil and air. People wondered if they should be
rebuilding, and if the dykes would be built up for next year, and what are the long-term plans for people
living on flood plains.

Another community meeting for the public was held on June 13 at the GFSS high school, where the
same officials and the newly recruited Recovery Manager, Steve Newton, provided further information
about the flood event itself, and outlined recovery efforts moving forward. Newton will be heading up a
team of several leads in charge of economic, human factors, environment, housing, critical
infrastructure, and logistics areas. It was also announced at the meeting that the Province will be giving
$2,800 for three months to every displace household affected by the flood, to be administered by the
Red Cross.

As time elapses, a clearer picture of the flood is beginning to emerge: Who was most affected (in North
Ruckle, it was singles); how many homes were impacted (101 out of 124 homes in South Ruckle); what
housing options will best meet the needs of the community post-flood; what will the hydrology report
that is currently being done reveal about the river; what areas of the dykes will need immediate
attention; what financing options will the City be able to access; how will the downtown core business
area be affected? Talks with BC Housing have begun, but no definite path forward has yet been
delineated. And housing, along with issues involving floodplain mapping and diking, homes needing
demolition, uninhabitable properties — will urgently need council’s collective wisdom and attention over
the next months. A rezoning change that will ease the restrictions for placement of modulars on North
and South Ruckle properties is now being passed, and this is a start.

In the coming weeks, Council will be receiving workshops and gathering information that will help us be
better informed to make sound decisions for our community. But the fact that Grand Forks city officials
(council and Mayor) had virtually no involvement in the critical, day-to-day operations of the EOC (based
on the Policy Group Manual as identified in the Regional Emergency Response Plan), left us uninformed,
and feeling very frustrated and helpless in the early days of this catastrophe. We were not able to
provide timely, or adequate information to the public, and this resulted in quite a toxic situation, which |
believe was unnecessary. The Province’s mandate for the EOC is that for the sake of accuracy,
information must come from one source, and | get that. But from my perspective, the take-away for
future disaster events must include at least weekly scrums that includes all the local elected officials.
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Samaritan’s Purse

| wonder where we would be without the fantastic, self-sacrificing efforts of Samaritan’s Purse and their
volunteers who, over the past weeks have been helping flood victims clean out and sanitize their flood-
damaged homes? | have had the immense privilege of volunteering with them in the areas of food
preparation (BBQ lunch for the Community Clean-Up Day at the City Hall park on Saturday, June 2™, and
meal preps at the RVCC church), and community outreach. Early each morning, these dedicated out-of-
town volunteers rise from rudimentary cots to share a simple, communal breakfast together, pray, and
then express God’s love to our community by venturing into flood-damaged homes to tackle the
mammoth job of cleaning up and clearing out the flood debris. They provide hope and relief to every
family they come into contact with, and some of the stories I've heard about their compassionate acts
kindness have literally brought tears to my eyes. My sincerest appreciation goes out to this organization
who have shared the love of Christ in such a tangible, practical way, and a shout-out and hats off to all
our local volunteers who have come alongside to help their neighbors out. Samaritan’s Purse volunteers
will be leaving our area as of June 31%. If you get the chance, do offer them thanks for their incredible
service to our community.

Zoning Bylaw Amendment Open House

| attended the Zoning Bylaw Amendment Open House on June 18" Staff members were on hand to
respond to visitors’ questions about the proposed regulations for the location of cannabis retail,
production and processing facilities, and changes being considered to allow modular dwellings in North
and South Ruckle, and some other minor changes to Zoning Bylaw 2039. A Public Hearing for the same
followed in the evening, where Council listened to what members of the community had to say about
these proposed zoning changes. Concerns were expressed about the distance of production and sales
facilities to youth-related centers; distances to residential neighborhoods, decreased property values,
and where cannabis can be publicly consumed.

Salmon BBQ Sunday, June 17th

On Father’s Day, Sunday, June 17" | attended the community Salmon BBQ, hosted by the Legion. The
fresh-caught salmon was donated by a northern community on behalf of those who were flooded out,
and funds for relief efforts were collected by donation. | want to thank the Legion members and all the

volunteers who stepped up to take on the project, and for doing such a fabulous job of it. While there, |
noticed not only the Samaritan’s Purse crew enjoying the delicious salmon dinner, but also many
displaced families as well. The entertainment was great, and the wonderful community spirit that was
present went a very long way to bring hope to our community. Thanks so much!

Respectfully submitted,

Beverley Tripp
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Request for Decision

To: Regular Meeting

From: Procedure Bylaw / Corporate Services

Date: June 25, 2018

Subject: Report — from the Council's Representative to the Regional

District of Kootenay Boundary

Recommendation: THAT Mayor Konrad’s report on the activities of the
Regional District of Kootenay Boundary, given verbally at
this meeting, be received.

Background

Under the City’s Procedures Bylaw No. 1946, 2013, the Order of Business permits the City’s
representative to the Regional District of Kootenay to report to Council and the Community on
issues, and actions of the Regional District of Kootenay Boundary.

Benefits or Impacts

General
The main advantage is that all of Council and the Public is provided with information on the
Regional District of Kootenay Boundary.

Strategic Impact

~
Community Engagement
¢ Information sharing with members of Council and the Public regarding regional issues.

Policy/Legislation
Procedure Bylaw No. 1946, 2013

Recommendation
THAT Mayor Konrad’s report on the activities of the Regional District of Kootenay
Boundary, given verbally at this meeting, be received.

Options

1. THAT Council accepts the report.

2. THAT Council does not accept the report.

3. THAT Council refers the matter back to staff for further information.
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Request for Decision

To: Regular Meeting
From: Chief Administrative Officer
Date: June 25, 2018
Subject: Council Liaison to the Regional Recovery Policy Group
Recommendation: THAT Council determines to appoint
and as representatives for the City

of Grand Forks as participants of the Regional
Recovery Policy Group to provide an information
conduit to their Council members throughout the 2018
flood disaster recovery process.

Background

As the Regional District Emergency Operations is making the transition into the
Recovery stage of the recent flood disaster, it was identified that there is a need for
representation from both City of Grand Forks Council and the Regional District of
Kootenay Boundary Director. This policy group would be invited to become participants
in determined meetings involving Chief Administrative Officers from both local
governments, a Management Committee (participants yet to be determined), the
Recovery Manager as well as other integral groups and provincial participants that may
be necessary at that time.

As Council has representation in place at the Regional table, it may be their choice to
appoint those same members to this group; albeit, it would be a Council decision for its
representation for the Policy Group table.

Benefits or Impacts

General
Participation in this Policy Group as part of the recovery team sees Council receiving
open communication on information and initiatives.

Strategic Impact

N -
Community EngagementibZéCommunity Livability Economic Growth

Fiscal Responsibility — by participating in this Policy Group addresses all four strategic
pillars

Policy/Legislation
Council, by resolution, is the determining body for appointing their members to represent
the City in matters. The Mayor has the authority to provide liaisons.
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Recommendation

THAT Council determines to appoint and as
representatives for the City of Grand Forks as participants of the Regional
Recovery Policy Group to provide an information conduit to their Council
members throughout the 2018 flood disaster recovery process.

Options

1. RESOLVED THAT Council accepts the report.

2. RESOLVED THAT Council does not accept the report.

3. RESOLVED THAT Council refers the matter back to staff for further information.

20f2
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To: Regular Meeting

From: Deputy Manager, Flood Recovery Branch
Date: 2018-06-25

Subject: Presentation on Flood Recovery Planning
Background

The Deputy Recovery Manager will present an update on status and planning for flood
recovery in Grand Forks and Boundary.

Benefits or Impacts

General

Provides information to Council and community on critical flood recovery issues.
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Union of BC
Municipalities

RECEIVED
May 31, 2018 JUN * 4 2018

THE CORPORATION OF
THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS

Mayor Frank Konrad

City of Grand Forks

Box 220

Grand Forks, BC VOH 1HO

Dear Mayor Konrad:
Re: 2018 Resclutions

UBCM is in receipt of the attached resolution(s) endorsed by your Council. Your
resolution(s) received endorsement at the AKBLG Spring 2018 AGM.

The resolutiori(s) will be presented to the UBCM membership for their consideration at
the 2018 UBCM Convention in September.

Please feel free to contact Jamee Justason, Information & Resolutions Coordinator, if
you have any questions about this process.

Tel: 604.270.8226 ext. 100 Email: jjustason@ubcm.ca

Sincerely,

\I\ML[ Kl
Director Wendy Booth
President
Enclosure
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Request for Increased Court Access Grand Forks

Whereas the provincial government is committed to improving access to justice and the courts, and
appoints and pays judges for the courts;

And whereas rural communities typically make do with a part-time circuit judge once a month, while
hundreds of millions of dollars has been allocated to improving court access in urban centers:

Therefore be it resolved the provincial government mandate increased access to the courts in rural BC by
providing a bi-monthly circuit court judge so that routine court matters may be dealt with in a more
expedient manner.

Convention Decision:
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Amend Criminal Justice Branch Charge Assessment Grand Forks
Guidelines

Whereas the criminal justice system is a foundation of Canadian society that plays an important part in
maintaining a just, peaceful and safe society;

And whereas in BC, police do not have authority to lay charges as in other provinces, and unlike other
provinces, the BC Crown Counsel requires a “substantial likelihood of conviction” criteria for laying

charges:

Therefore be it resolved the provincial government drop the burden of proof criteria for Crown Counsel in
the laying of criminal charges from a “substantial likelihood of conviction,” to a “reasonable likelihood of

conviction.”

Convention Decision:
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Request for Additional Crown Counsel Lawyers Grand Forks

Whereas property crime rates have increased throughout the province, and the more borderline criminal
cases are not going fo trial because Crown Counsel resources are stretched too thin;

And whereas it is the Crown Counsel who lays charges and prosecutes in criminal matters:

Therefore be it resolved the provincial government increase the number of Crown Counsel lawyers to
adequate levels to keep better pace with the growing criminal caseload.

Convention Decision:
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RECEIVED |

ol =
' o JUN 13 2018

From: info@civicinfo.bc.ca

) : THE CORPORATION OF

Senks Jane 12,2000 Rl THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS

To: CivicInfo BC

Subject: 2018 UBCM Convention — Meeting Requests with the Minister of Municipal Affairs and
Housing

Attachments: 2018-06-11 UBCM Letter from Minister Robinson to Mayors and RD Chairs.pdf

3k ok ok ok ok ok ok ok 3k ok ok ok ok ok ok 3k 3k sk ok ok Kk ok ok ok k

This message is being sent by Civiclnfo BC to all Union of BC Municipalities (UBCM) Mayors and Regional District Chairs

on behalf of the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing.
e o e ok e o ok o e ok ke ke ok oke o ofe e ke sl ok ok o ok ke sk

Subject:

. 2018 UBCM Convention — Meeting Requests with the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Hou:
Intended Recipient(s): Mayors/Regional District Chairs/Islands Trust Chair/CAOs and cc: Administrative Assistants ¢
Attachments: One (1) plus message below

If you have received this message in error, we ask that you forward it to the appropriate person in your office.

3k 3k ok 3k ok 3k ok ok ok ok 3k 3k sk ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok ok 3k ok K ok ok Kk

MESSAGE:

Please see the attached letter from the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing with regards to the 2018 UBCM
Convention. The letter outlines the process for requesting a meeting with Minister Selina Robinson, as well as with
provincial government, agency, commission and corporation staff.

This year’s online meeting request form will be available at: Minister of Municpal Affairs and Housing Meetings.

If you have any questions, please contact the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing UBCM Meeting Coordinator,
Nicole Gibbings by email at: MAH.UBCM.MeetingRequests@gov.bc.ca or by phone at 778-698-3203.

3 sk ok 2k ok ok sk ok sk sk ok ok ok ok sk 3k 3 ok ok ok ok %k ok ok ok ok ok ok ok

The information transmitted herein is confidential and may contain privileged information. It is intended solely for the
person or entity to which it is addressed. Any review, retransmission, dissemination, taking of any action in reliance
upon, or other use of this information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited. If you
received this in error, please notify the sender and delete or destroy all digital and printed copies.

Civiclnfo BC makes no representations or warranties whatsoever, either expressed or implied, with respect to the

accuracy, reliability or suitability for any purpose, of the information contained or referenced in this message.
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BRITISH
COLUMBIA

June 11, 2018
Dear Mayors and Regional District Chairs:

I am pleased to provide you with the following information regarding the process for requesting a
meeting with me, or with provincial government, agency, commission and corporation staff, during the
upcoming annual UBCM Convention taking place in Whistler, September 10 to 14, 2018.

You will also receive a letter from the Honourable John Horgan, Premier, containing information about
the online process for requesting a meeting with Premier Horgan and other Cabinet Ministers.

If you would like to meet with me at the Convention, please complete the online request form at:
MAH Minister's Meeting and submit it to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing before
July 13, 2018. Meeting arrangements will be confirmed by mid -August. | will do my best to
accommodate as many meeting requests as possible.

To get the most out of your delegation’s meeting with me, it would be helpful if you would fill out the
online form with detailed topic information. By providing this information in advance of the meeting,
I will have a better understanding of your delegation’s interests and it will allow for discussions that are

more productive.

Ministry staff will email the Provincial Appointment Book (PAB). This PAB lists all government, agency,
commission and corporation staff expected to be available to meet with delegates at the Convention, as
well as details on how to request a meeting with staff online.

As | approach my second Convention as Minister responsible for local government, | look forward to
hearing more about your communities, to identifying opportunities to work together with you in
partnership, and to growing our relationships in the spirit of collaboration.

Sincerely,

Selina Robinson
Minister

pc: Honourable John Horgan, Premier
Wendy Booth, President, Union of British Columbia Municipalities

Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Office of the Minister Mailing Address: Location:

Housing PO Box 9056 Stn Prov Govt Room 310
Victoria BC V8W 9E2 Parliament Buildings
Phone: 250 387-2283 Victoria BC
Fax: 250 387-4312

www.gov.bc.ca/mah
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From: info@civicinfo.bc.ca JUN 13 2018
Sent: June 12, 2018 3:09 PM THE CORPORATIO
N OF
Subject: 2018 UBCM Convention — Meeting Requests with Premier Horgan an and Provincial
Cabinet Ministers
Attachments: 2018-06-11 UBCM Letter from Premier John Horgan to Mayors & Regional Dis....pdf

Epkokkokokokkkkokkkkkkkkk kR ko
This message is being sent by Civicinfo BC to all Union of BC Municipalities (UBCM) members and Regional Districts on

behalf of the Honourable John Horgan, Premier.
k3 ok e ke sk A ok e sk ok sk sk koK 3k ok ok ok ok sk ok sk ok ok

Subject: 2018 UBCM Convention — Meeting Requests with Premier Horgan and Provincial Cabinet Ministers
Intended Recipient(s): Mayors/Regional District Chairs/Islands Trust Chair/CAOs and cc: Administrative Assistants and Gene
Attachments: One (1) plus message below

If you have received this message in error, we ask that you forward it to the appropriate person in your office.

sk o ok ok 3k o sk 3k ok sk %k ok 3k 3k ok 3k A e Xk ok %k ok Xk ok k

MESSAGE:

Please see the attached letter from Premier Horgan with regards to this year’s UBCM Convention. The letter outlines
the process for requesting a meeting with the Premier and Cabinet Ministers.

This year’s online form will be available at: https://UBCMreg.gov.bc.ca. The invitation code is MeetingRequest2018,
and is case sensitive.

Please note as in previous years, meetings with the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing are scheduled directly
with that Ministry. You will be receiving a letter as to their meeting request process.

If you have any questions, please contact the Premier’s UBCM Meeting Request Coordinator by email
at: UBCM.Meetings@gov.hc.ca, or by telephone at: 250 213-3856.

e ok e o o o ok e ok ok s ok ke ke ek ok ok ok Rk ok ok K

The information transmitted herein is confidential and may contain privileged information. It is intended solely for the
person or entity to which it is addressed. Any review, retransmission, dissemination, taking of any action in reliance
upon, or other use of this information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited. If you
received this in error, please notify the sender and delete or destroy all digital and printed copies.

CivicInfo BC makes no representations or warranties whatsoever, either expressed or implied, with respect to the

accuracy, reliability or suitability for any purpose, of the information contained or referenced in this message.
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COLUMBIA

June 11, 2018
Dear Mayors and Regional District Chairs:

My caucus colleagues and I are looking forward to secing you all again at this year’s Union of
British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM) Convention in Whistler from September 10-14.

Communication, Collaboration, Cooperation, the theme for the 2018 Convention, is indeed an
appropriate focus as we engage in dialogue around local, provincial, federal, and First Nations
governments working together to build strong and vibrant communities throughout our province.
We all have a part to play in finding solutions and developing ideas that will ensure our
communities thrive, and UBCM provides us with a wonderful opportunity to listen to one
another, share ideas, and work together to build a better BC.

If you would like to request a meeting with a Cabinet Minister or with me during this year’s
convention, please register online at https://UBCMreg.gov.be.ca (live, as of today). Please note
that this year’s invitation code is MeetingRequest2018 and it is case sensitive. If you have any
questions, please contact UBCM.Meetings@gov.bc.ca or phone 250-213-3856.

I look forward to being part of your convention, meeting with many of you, and exploring ways
that we can partner together to address common issues.

Sincerely,

John Horgan

Premier

Office of the Web Site: Mailing Address: Location:

Premier www.gov.bc.ca PO Box 9041 Stn Prov Govt Parliament Buildings

Victoria BC V8W 9E1 Victoria
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\G‘“""%ﬁ«i; GRAND FORKS AND DISTRICT FALL FAIR
%LL' SOCIETY
FTAIRs,

R o Box 704, GRAND FORKS, BRITISH COLUMBIA VOH 1HO

RECEIVED
JUN 14 1018

i THE CORPORATION OF
City of Grand Forks June 14 2018 THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS

To Whom It May Concern

Dear City of Grand Forks:

Re: Grand Forks & District Fall Fair Society Funding Assistance

The Grand Forks Fall Fair has been a highlight of our area since 1910. 108 years later we
continue this great tradition. During this difficult time we look forward to hosting an event that
will bring joy and celebrate our community. The Fair gives people a place to go and forget their
stresses for a while. It gives us a place to share our accomplishments and meet with friends,
family and neighbours.

Last year Fair was a smashing successes and we see the Fair growing in the years to come.
The Fall Fair depends on your generous in kind support as well as any financial assistance you
are able to provide. We understand these are difficult days for the City, but hope that you are
able to provide $1,600 to help cover the cost of an over the street banner and signage to help
promote this community celebration.

Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely
Danna O'Donnell

President

sa C Distict Fal)

\)J ‘VGL Ff:[!l’ 50(,8‘74/~CW#‘
/ n A@ﬁ&i Pageﬁs% of 174‘1—5

e i {Tmﬂ m
i -:




Request for Decision

2-To: Regular Meeting

From: Development and Engineering Services

Date: June 25, 2018

Subject: Third Reading of Zoning Bylaw Amendment No. 2039-A1
Recommendation: THAT Council give third reading to Zoning Bylaw

Amendment No. 2039-Al.

THAT Council directs staff to forward Zoning Bylaw
Amendment No. 2039-A1l to the Ministry of
Transportation and Infrastructure for approval.

Background
The purpose of this report is to summarize the content of the Zoning Bylaw Amendment
and the associated planning and community engagement process.

Purpose of the Zoning Bylaw Amendment

Zoning Bylaw Amendment No. 2039-A1l defines overlay zones and locational criteria to
regulate cannabis retail sites and production/processing/distribution facilities. Also
included in the Amendment Bylaw are five minor “housekeeping” changes. In summary:

Cannabis retail sites would be permitted to locate in the Core Commercial and
Neighbourhood Commercial zones and in industrial zones. However, they must be
located at least: a) 100 m from the nearest parcel boundary of a lot in a Community
Use Zone; b) 30 m from the nearest parcel boundary of a lot having a youth-centred
facility; and, 100 m from the nearest edge of building of another cannabis retail site.
In addition, the front face of a building and any signage may be no less than 50 m
from a controlled highway.

Cannabis production, processing and distribution would only be allowed in
specific areas within industrial zones where they are not within 100 m of a residential
zone, Community Use Zone or a youth-centred facility.

Minor amendments including:

— Clarifying the wording within the Rural Residential (R4) zones with respect to
minimum parcel size for subdivision, increasing the minimum size of parcel
where both water and sewer exists to 2500 m2, clarifying permitted dwelling
types, and adding that manufactured homes as secondary dwellings are subject
to the regulations of the Agricultural Land Commission.

— Adding a clause which permits mobile homes to be placed on lands zoned R-1
(Single and Two-family) and R-2 (Small Lot Residential) south of the Kettle River
in the North Ruckle and South Ruckle neighbourhoods only.

— Increasing the maximum height requirement for accessory dwelling units (i.e.,
garden suites/carriage houses) from 4.8 m to 7.6 m. This will allow a livable
accessory dwelling unit (i.e., a carriage house) to be built above a garage or
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workshop and at the same time ensure that large monolithic structures are
avoided. This height increase would not apply to other accessory buildings such
as storage sheds and would only apply to the R-1 and R-2 residential zones
where accessory dwelling units are permitted.

Increasing the floor area maximum for all accessory buildings on a lot in the R-1
(Single and Two-family) and R-2 (Small Lot Residential) zones to “not more than
the lot coverage of the principal use”. Currently the lot coverage of all accessory

buildings (including accessory dwelling units) cannot exceed 50% of the lot
coverage of the home. This increase would provide property owners with more
flexibility for siting and building garden suites, or workshops, particularly when
the principle residence is small.

Planning Process

Since early 2018, the City has undertaken an extensive planning and public engagement
program respecting the regulation of cannabis facilities. Table 1 below summarizes the
entire zoning amendment process.

Table 1: Planning and Public Engagement Process

Date Activity
February 26, Cannabis Legalization Critical Path introduced identifying bylaws
2018 needed to regulate legalized cannabis.
End of Community survey on retail cannabis business.
February
April 9 Proposed bylaw amendments considered and discussed by
Committee of the Whole.
April 23 Zoning bylaw amendment given 1% and 2™ reading.

June 6 and 13

Open House and Public Hearing advertised in the Gazette and on
the City’s website.

June 11 Council received an update on the public engagement process
(Open House and Public Hearing) to be held in conjunction with the
bylaw.

June 18 All-day Open House hosted at City Hall.

June 18 (6pm) | Public Hearing.

June 18 — 25 Comments from the public received, documented and transmitted to
Council.

June 25 Zoning Bylaw Amendment to be considered for 3 reading.

Mid-July Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure approves Bylaw.

July 23, 2018 | Zoning Bylaw Amendment given final reading.

20of4
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Benefits or Impacts

Strategic Impact

O ,
Community Engagement
¢ Conducting community surveys, open houses and promoting activities that
engage the public encourages feedback and community participation.

Community Livability
e Establishing regulations and responding to community feedback regarding the
location of cannabis businesses increases community livability.

Economic Growth
o Defining where cannabis related businesses are permitted gives guidance and
certainty which encourages investment.

Policy/Legislation
Zoning Bylaw No. 2039, the Local Government Act, federal/provincial legislation
pertaining to cannabis.

Attachments
Zoning Bylaw Amendment No. 2039-Al

Recommendation

THAT Council give third reading to Zoning Bylaw Amendment No. 2039-Al.
THAT Council directs staff to forward Zoning Bylaw Amendment No. 2039-Al to
the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure for approval.

Options

1. RESOLVED THAT Council accepts the report.

2. RESOLVED THAT Council does not accept the report.

3. RESOLVED THAT Council refers the matter back to staff for further information.

30of4
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Report Approval Details

Document Title: 09-4600-Bylaw 2039-A1 Cannabis Zoning.docx

Attachments: - By2039-A1 Cannabis Production and Retail Overlay and
Housekeeping Amendment.docx

- Cannabis Underlying Zoning Map letter.pdf

Final Approval Date: ' Jun 15, 2018

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined
below:

No Signature - Task assigned to Dolores Sheets was completed by
workflow administrator Daniel Drexler

Dolores Sheets - Jun 15, 2018 - 4:24 PM

No Signature - Task assigned to Diane Heinrich was completed by
assistant Daniel Drexler

Diane Heinrich - Jun 15, 2018 - 4:25 PM
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS

Bylaw No. 2039-A1

A Bylaw to Amend the City of Grand Forks
Zoning Bylaw No. 2039, 2018.

The Corporation of the City of Grand Forks ENACTS as follows:

1. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Zoning Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No.
2039-A1, 2018”.

2. Amend Bylaw No. 2039 as follows:

a. INSERT under Part Il Interpretation Section 2 Definitions in correct alphabetical order:

“Cannabis Retail means any fixed retail space licenced to sell recreational cannabis
by the provincial government.”

“Cannabis Production, Processing or Distribution space means any facility licenced
federally for the purposes of cannabis cultivation, nursery, or processing, or licenced
provincially for wholesale and distribution of cannabis products.”

“Youth-Centred Facility means any school, daycare, playground, community garden,
recreation facility or other facility designed for use primarily by minors.”

b. INSERT under Part VI Zones after CU (Community Use) Zone in Section 57:

57 Cannabis Production, Processing and Distribution Overlay (CPO)

57.1 Every subsection in Section 57 refers to the Cannabis Production and
Processing and Distribution Overlay (CPO).
57.2 The following uses and no others are permitted:

(a) Cannabis Production, Processing, or Distribution;
(b) Cannabis Retail; or
(c) Any use or structure permitted in the underlying zone.

57.3 Permitted accessory uses and buildings include:
(a) buildings or structures accessory to a permitted use.

57.4 Unless otherwise permitted in this bylaw, no building or structure may be within
100 m of the nearest parcel boundary of a lot in a residential zone or Community
Use Zone, or a youth-centred facility

57.5 See Sections 12 to 33 and 50 to 55 of this bylaw.

Page 1 of 4
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58 Cannabis Retail Overlay (CRO)
58.1 Every subsection in Section 58 refers to the Cannabis Retail Overlay (CRO).

58.2 The following uses and no others are permitted:

(a) Cannabis Retail;
(b) Any use or structure permitted in the underlying zone.

58.3  Unless otherwise permitted in this bylaw, no building or structure may be within:

(a) 100 m from the nearest parcel boundary of a lot in a Community Use Zone;

(b) 30 m from the nearest parcel boundary of a lot having a youth-centred facility;
and

(c) 100 m from the nearest edge of building of another Cannabis Retail site.

58.4 The front face of a building and any signage may be no less than 50 m from a
controlled highway.

58.5 Permitted accessory uses and buildings include:
(a) buildings or structures accessory to a permitted use.
58.6 See Sections 12 to 33 and 50 to 55 of this bylaw.

c. REPLACE Sections 42.4 and 42.5 in their entirety with the following text:

42.4 The minimum size for subdivision purposes is:

(a) 1 hectare where there is no community sewer or water system;

(b) 5,000 square meters where there is either community water or sewer; or

(c) 2,500 square meters where there is both community water and sewer.
425 The following types of dwelling units are permitted:

(a) one single family detached dwelling,

(b) one mobile home, or

(c) one two-family dwelling; plus

(d) within the Agricultural Land Reserve, one additional manufactured (mobile)
home subject to regulations of the Agricultural Land Commission.

d. REPLACE Sections 43.4 and 43.5 in their entirety with the following text:

43.4 The minimum size for subdivision purposes is:

(a) 1 hectare where there is no community sewer or water system;

(b) 5,000 square meters where there is community water but not sewer; or

(c) 2,500 square meters where there is both community water and sewer.
42.5 The following types of dwelling units are permitted:

(a) one single family detached dwelling,

(b) one mobile home, or

(c) one two-family dwelling; plus

(d) within the Agricultural Land Reserve, one additional manufactured (mobile)
home subiject to regulations of the Agricultural Land Commission.

Page 2 of 4
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e. ALTER Section 21 “Mobile Home Parks” by changing the section title to "Maobile
Homes and Mobile Home Parks" and insert the following text:

21.2 Mobile homes may be placed on R-1 Single and Two-family and R-2 Small Lot
Residential zones on lands south of the Kettle River in the North Ruckle and
South Ruckle neighbourhoods.

f. DELETE the phrase “or 75% of the floor area of the principal dwelling”, under Part Il
Interpretation, Section 2, Definitions, “Dwelling unit” Section (g) (ii).

g. REPLACE Sections 36.7 and 39.8 in their entirety with the following text:

No accessory building or structure shall exceed 4.8 metres in height except for
Accessory Dwelling Units which shall not exceed 7.6 metres in height.

h. REPLACE Sections 36.8 and 39.9 in their entirety with the following text:

The total of all the accessory buildings shall have a lot coverage not greater than the
lot coverage of the principal structure.

3 Incorporation

3.1 Schedule “A-1" Cannabis Land Use Overlay Map is hereby made part of Bylaw No. 2039.
Read a FIRST time this day of , 2018.

Read a SECOND time this day of ,2018.

Read a THIRD time this day of , 2018.

FINALLY ADOPTED this day of , 2018.

Mayor Frank Konrad Corporate Officer Diane Heinrich

CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true copy of Bylaw No. 2039-A1 as passed by the Council
of the City of Grand Forks onthe  day of ,

Corporate Officer of the Corporation of the
City of Grand Forks

Page 3 of 4
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Zoning Bylaw 2039 Schedule A-1
Cannabis Production and Retail Zoning:

GRAND FORs |

" » Eligible Underlying Zones
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Cannabis Production and Retail Eligible
"1 AP - Airport Industrial
[ 11 - Light Industrial 1
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